BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (BDC)
Zoom Meeting (recorded) @ 8:30: ID
Meeting Minutes May 28th, 2020
Attendance
BDC Attendees: Pier Cipollone, Wesley Bedford, Rebecca Cohen, Andrew Maguire, Marty Moore, Jake Whiting, Lori
Aratari, Nathan Varland, Steve Pies, Chris Fix.
Excused: Derek Geib, Rebecca Cohen
Media/Guests: Mike Pattinella – The Batavian
Call to Order
At 8:34 a.m. L. Aratari, President of the BDC, called the meeting to order via Zoom Meeting ID: 592 401 749, which will
be recorded and transcribed for posting on the BDC website. The BDC will not enter executive session.
Presentations: None.
Executive Session

No Motion made to enter executive session under the Public Officers Law, Article 7, Open Meetings
Law Section 105, for the following reasons:
1.The medical, financial, credit or employment history of a particular person or corporation, or matters leading
to the appointment, employment, promotion, demotion discipline, suspension, dismissal or removal of a
particular person or corporation.
2. The proposed acquisition, sale or lease of real property or the proposed acquisition of securities, or sale or
exchange of securities held by such public body, but only when publicity would substantially affect the value
thereof.
Enter Public Session
Chairman’s Report
No agenda additions to be proposed.
President L. Aratari presented the meeting minutes from the April 23rd, 2020 meeting. W. Bedford made a motion to
approve the meeting minutes as presented; seconded by C. Fix and approved by all members present.
L. Aratari announced the next scheduled meeting for the BDC will be held on June 25th, 2020 at City Hall at 8:30 a.m. If
the ban on social gatherings pertinent to the BDC meeting is still in effect, the meeting will be held Via Zoom and the
Meeting ID will be posted on the agenda and the website.
L. Aratari addressed the Board Member Confidential Evaluations that addressed questions 5-8. The BDC website has a
lot of information and many of the regulatory documents for reading and all policy documents. Each meeting the Board
will address a set number of the responses to strengthen the Boards knowledge on the topics at hand. Goal setting for
next year will be easier as A. Maguire had just started. N. Varland addressed the ABO and PARIS reporting requirements
as they need to completed by a certain date. L. Aratari did state there has been many transitions in the last year that
could also have affected some of the scoring on these.
Committee Reports
Governance and Nomination Committee:
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A. Maguire states that BDC Attorney Bob Murray is working on the process of amending the By-Laws to increase the
eligible number of voting members. The resolution is not complete yet and therefore cannot be voted on this meeting
but he will have it ready for the June 25th, 2020 meeting.
2020-2021 BDC/City of Batavia Amended Agreement- The Board reviewed the amended BDC agreement with the City of
Batavia and found it to be compliant and sufficient with receiving a bi-annual payment instead of a full onetime
payment. M. Moore states that structuring the agreement this way will be beneficial to the city as the City navigates
through the data of their financials and delay of certain payments to the City.
N. Varland made a motion to approve the 2020-2021 BDC and City of Batavia Agreement as presented and authorize
Board President, Lori Aratari, to execute said agreement; seconded by J. Whiting and approved by all members present.
Audit and Finance:
Financial Statements- The April 2020 financial statements were reviewed with the board, and a brief overview was
given.
C. Fix made a motion to approve the April 2020 financial statements; seconded by S. Pies and approved by all members
present.
Real Estate/BOA/DRI/BIF/NYMS
Batavia DRI/DRI-BIF Project Updates- A. Maguire states there has been movement on these projects since our last
meeting as construction is now allowable through the phasing process. Project owners for that received reallocated
funds from vacated BIF projects were very pleased to receive amended awards as approved from April’s meeting. It
should be the push that owners need to continue to project as these are very difficult fiscal times. 99 Main Street has
been bid out and hope to select the contractor mid-June. 242 Ellicott is ready for construction once the contractor
provides certain insurance docs. All other projects are still committed at this time despite the difficulties posed with the
pandemic. The major DRI projects are also moving forward, Jackson Square and City Centre are making progress, the
roof is still under repair and about 30-40% complete. A. Maguire states we continue to patiently wait for an
announcement on Ellicott Station funding and should remain positive and hopeful. YMCA/UMMC continues to move
forward and hope to have design RFP completed soon. P. Cipollone inquired if Savarino has completed any progress at
the site. M. Moore states he has boarded up the windows and he is working with the Code and Zoning Departments
about the next steps and how to divide that parcel properly. A. Maguire states that he concurs with M. Moore on the
most up to date. L. Aratari asked if Theater 56 hired a project manager? A. Maguire states Theater 56 is nearing
completion of design and has taken on a project manager to help with the process as it is a large complex project. C. Fix
inquired if the DRI funding has been extended. A. Maguire states he has still not heard of any extensions on these
programs officially and have asked the DRI- NYS DOS representative if there has been any and he stated no. If a project is
getting close to the drop-dead date, NYS-HCR should be receptive to an extension with the pandemic as it has caused
delays across all levels of the project processes.
A. Maguire states that the New York Main Street Grant Scoring and Selection Committee had met a couple times to
review and discuss the projects and ultimately score each and make selections with grant awards that total $277,500 to
recipients. Until the award letters are returned, we will not disclose which projects were selected at this time. From a
high-level overview, 5 projects were selected to receive proposed awards. There will be 10 total commercial units
involved and 3 residential conversions if the owners accept the grant awards. This should be a smooth process and we
do have LaBella and InSite support as well, just like the BIF projects did. The City was a recipient of the BOA grant for City
Centre and Harvester so we are working with Chris Bauer at Dept of State and this will help with predevelopment
activities and phase 1 work and set us up for phase 2 work.
Small Business – None at this time.
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Old Business- None at this time.
New Business –

COVID-19 Update: Director Maguire states that the COVID-19 has had a negative impact on our local, national and even
international economy. New York State has created a NY Forward loan program which could catch the overflow of SBA
products. We continue to move forward with phases and hope the figures do not show a regression. As we do move
forward, capacity will be limited. Masks are not legally required, but businesses can make the discretion if they will allow
people in without a mask. The BDC website is continually updated with links and resources. Phase 2 should be on the
horizon and we all need to be safe and patient. Direct effects of this pandemic will likely last years, unfortunately. He has
been in contact with many of our clients and loan participants to try and spread the word of the relief efforts that are
available to both employers and employees.
L. Aratari asked if we had heard about the settlement offer for American Legal’s City loan. A. Maguire states yes, we
were notified last week that the payment was made and the legal release is official.
S. Pies states that the Ellicott Bike Trail, that the BDC had sold a plot of land for, is phenomenal and everyone should go
enjoy it!
Adjournment
J. Whiting made a motion to adjourn the meeting; seconded by W. Bedford and approved by all member present. The
meeting stood adjourned at 9:07 a.m.
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Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance – 2019-2020 Master List

Criteria
Board members have a shared understanding
of the mission and purpose of the Authority.
The policies, practices and decisions of the
Board are always consistent with this mission.
Board members comprehend their role and
fiduciary responsibilities and hold themselves
and each other to these principles.
The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and
practices for the effective governance,
management and operations of the Authority
and reviews these annually.
The Board sets clear and measurable
performance goals for the Authority that
contribute to accomplishing its mission.
The decisions made by Board members are
arrived at through independent judgment and
deliberation, free of political influence, pressure
or self-interest.
Individual Board members communicate
effectively with executive staff so as to be well
informed on the status of all important issues.
Board members are knowledgeable about the
Authority’s programs, financial statements,
reporting requirements, and other transactions.
The Board meets to review and approve all
documents and reports prior to public release
and is confident that the information being
presented is accurate and complete.
The Board knows the statutory obligations of
the Authority and if the Authority is in
compliance with state law.
Board and committee meetings facilitate open,
deliberate and thorough discussion, and the
active participation of members.
Board members have sufficient opportunity to
research, discuss, question and prepare before
decisions are made and votes taken.
Individual Board members feel empowered to
delay votes, defer agenda items, or table
actions if they feel additional information or
discussion is required.
The Board exercises appropriate oversight of
the CEO and other executive staff, including
setting performance expectations and
reviewing performance annually.
The Board has identified the areas of most risk
to the Authority and works with management to
implement risk mitigation strategies before
problems occur.
Board members demonstrate leadership and
vision and work respectfully with each other.
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Disagree

AMENDED AND RESTATED
BY–LAWS
of the
BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
AS OF June 2725, 20192020
ARTICLE I – THE CORPORATION
SECTION 1

NAME

The Corporation shall be known as “Batavia Development Corporation” (hereinafter, the
“Corporation”).
SECTION 2

OFFICES

The principal office of the Corporation shall be in the City of Batavia, County of
Genesee, State of New York. The corporation may also have offices at such other places within
or without the State of New York as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine or
the activities of the corporation may require.
SECTION 3

PURPOSES

The Corporation shall have such purposes as are now or hereafter set forth in its
Certificate of Corporation, as amended (hereinafter, the “Certificate”). The Batavia Development
Corporation was organized by the City of Batavia and is responsible for the economic
development activities and is a steward for the City’s economic development funds. The
Corporation is to operate exclusively for charitable purposes within the meaning of Section
50l(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, to relieve and reduce
unemployment, promote and provide for additional and maximum employment, better and
maintain job opportunities, and lessen the burden of government and act in the public interest.
Furthermore, the Corporation was formed to:
(a) foster job creation;
(b) construct, acquire, rehabilitate and improve for use by others, facilities in the City of
Batavia, to assist financially in such construction, acquisition, rehabilitation and improvement to
maintain and furnish advice, technical assistance and liaison with federal, state and local
authorities;
(c) To acquire by purchase, lease, gift, bequest, devise or otherwise real or personal
property or interests therein;
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(d) To apply for loans and borrow money without limit as to amount; to make, draw,
accept, endorse, execute and issue negotiable bonds, debentures, notes and other obligations
therefor;
(e) To sell, lease, mortgage or otherwise dispose of or encumber any such facilities or any
of its real or personal property or any interest therein upon such terms as it may determine;
(f) To enter into covenants and agreements and to comply with all the terms, conditions
and provisions thereof, and otherwise to carry out its corporate purposes and to foster and
encourage the location or expansion of facilities and related businesses in the territory in which
the operations of such Corporation are principally to be conducted;
(g) To apply for and make grants and loans and to execute any and all documents
necessary in connection therewith;
(h) To do any other act or thing incidental to or connected with the foregoing purposes or
in advancement thereof, but not for the pecuniary profit or financial gain of its members,
directors, officers or any private person;
(i) Without leave of the court, to sell, lease, mortgage or otherwise depose of or encumber
any such plants or any of its real or personal property or any interest therein upon such terms as it
may determine;
(j) In connection with loans from New York State and United States government
agencies, to enter into covenants and agreements and to comply with all the terms, conditions and
provisions thereof, and otherwise to carry out its corporate purposes and to foster and encourage
the location or expansion of retail, industrial, commercial, recreational or manufacturing facilities
in the territory in which the operations of such corporation are principally to be conducted;
(k) To do all and everything suitable for the accomplishment of any of the foregoing
purposes; including but not limited to retail loans and assistance to retail businesses; and
(l) In general, to perform any and all acts and things, and exercise any and all powers
which may now or hereafter be lawful for the Corporation to do or exercise under and pursuant to
the laws of the State of New York for the purpose of accomplishing any of the foregoing
purposes of the Corporation.
ARTICLE II – BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SECTION 1

POWER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors (hereinafter, the “Board”),
which shall establish all general policies governing its operations.
SECTION 2

NUMBER, ELECTION, AND TERM OF DIRECTORS
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(a)
The number of voting Directors shall be at least five (5) and not more than a total
of nineeleven (911) voting Directors. Directors shall be appointed by the Board. Whenever the
number of voting Directors is less than five (5), there shall be a special meeting of the Board in
which more voting Directors shall be appointed to maintain a total of at least five (5). The term
of each Director shall be three (3) years. No Director shall be elected to the Board for more than
three (3) consecutive terms. Up to an additional ten (10) individuals may be appointed as
non-voting Directors of the Board, who shall serve for one-year term and act in advisory capacity
only to the voting Directors. The appointed non-voting Directors shall enjoy the benefits of any
indemnification of voting Directors as determined herein or as determined from time to time. The
Directors shall exercise all rights of Directors as described herein and in the Certificate of
Incorporation or any applicable resolution. Any subsequent increase or decrease in the size of the
Board of Directors shall require an amendment of the Certificate and the approval of Board by
the affirmative vote of a majority of voting Directors at a duly convened meeting of the Board at
which a quorum is present. As used in these By-laws, “the entire Board of Directors” means the
total number of voting Directors that the Corporation would have if there were no vacancies on
the Board.
(b)
The President/Chief Executive Officer, as defined herein, may serve on the Board
of Directors of the Corporation; provided, however, in such event, shall not participate in
determining the level of compensation or reimbursement, or time and attendance rules for the
position of President/Chief Executive Officer.
(c)
All Directors of the Board shall participate in training approved by the State of
New York regarding their legal, fiduciary, financial and ethical responsibilities as Directors
within one (1) year of appointment to the Board. Thereafter, the Directors shall participate in
such continuing training as may be required to remain informed of best practices, regulatory and
statutory changes relating to the effective oversight of the management and financial activities of
the Corporation and the adhere to the highest standards of responsible governance.
(d)
As soon as practicable and in compliance with Section 2825 of the Public
Authorities Law, the majority of the voting Directors shall be Independent Directors, as such
term is defined in paragraph (e) below.
(e)
Independence.
means any person who:

For the purposes of these By-Laws, an Independent Director

(i)
is not, and in the past two (2) years has not been, employed by the
Corporation or another corporate body having the same ownership and control of the
Corporation in an executive capacity;
(ii)
is not, and in the past two (2) years has not been, employed by an entity
that received remuneration valued at more than fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) for
goods and services provided to the Corporation or received any other form of financial
assistance valued at more than fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) from the
Corporation;
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(iii) is not a relative of an executive officer or employee in an executive
position of the Corporation or another corporate body having the same ownership and
control of the Corporation; and
(iv)
is not, and in the past two (2) years has not been, a lobbyist registered
under a state or local law and paid by a client to influence the management decisions,
contract awards, rate determinations or any other similar actions of the Corporation or
another corporate body having the same ownership and control of the Corporation.
(f)
Board Offices. A Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson shall be elected from among
the Directors at the annual meetings of the Board of Directors. The term of office for the
Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson shall extend for one year after his or her election and until a
successor is elected. Subject to the provision of paragraph (a) of this section, the Chairperson
and Vice-Chairperson shall be eligible to serve an unlimited number of consecutive terms.
SECTION 3

RESIGNATION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

(a)
Any Director of the Corporation may resign at any time by giving written notice to
the Chairperson, with a copy provided to the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the
time specified therein or, if no time is specified, then on delivery. Acceptance of the resignation
shall not be necessary to make it effective.
(b)
Any Director may be removed from the Board with or without cause by a
majority vote of voting Directors provided there is a quorum of not less than a majority of the
entire Board present.
SECTION 4

NEWLY CREATED DIRECTORSHIPS AND VACANCIES

Newly created directorships resulting from an increase in the number of directors, and
vacancies occurring for any reason, shall be filled by the Board of Directors as soon as
practicable but in no event later than sixty (60) days after the increase or vacancy occurs. A
Director elected to fill a vacancy caused by resignation, death, disability or removal shall hold
office for the unexpired term of his or her predecessor in office and until a successor is elected
and takes office.
SECTION 5

ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held within six months after the
end of each fiscal year at a convenient time and location designated by the Board. Written notice
of the annual meeting shall be mailed, emailed or delivered to each Director of the Corporation
prior to the meeting.
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SECTION 6

ANNUAL REPORT

At the annual meeting of the Board, a Director designated by the Board or the President
and/or the Treasurer of the Corporation shall present an annual report showing:
(a)
A complete audited financial statement of the Corporation for the fiscal year immediately
preceding the date of the report showing the assets and liabilities, principal changes in assets and
liabilities, revenue, receipts, expenses and disbursements of the Corporation; and
(b)

A summary of the activities of the Corporation during the preceding year.

The annual report of the Corporation shall be filed every year, together with the PARIS report,
with the New York State Public Authority’s Budget Office.
SECTION 7

SPECIAL MEETING AND NOTICE

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called at any time by a majority of
Directors or by the President/Chief Executive Officer or any other officer of the Corporation.
Written notice shall be mailed or delivered to each Director of the Corporation prior to the
meeting. Said notice shall state the purposes, time and place of the special meeting and that no
business other than that specified in the notice may be transacted; provided, however, if by
unanimous consent all of the Directors present at such meeting elect to transact business not
previously described in the aforementioned notice, then the Directors may transact such other
business.
SECTION 8

WAIVERS OF NOTICE

Notice of a meeting need not be given to any Director who submits a signed waiver of
notice whether before or after the meeting, or who attends the meeting without protesting, prior
thereto or at its commencement, the lack of notice to him or her.
SECTION 9

PLACE OF MEETING

The Board of Directors may hold its meetings at such place or places within or outside
the State of New York as the voting Directors may from time to time by resolution determine.
SECTION 10 OPEN MEETINGS
The Corporation is subject to Open Meetings Law. The Corporation shall comply with
the Open Meetings Law of the State of New York, as set forth within Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law.
SECTION 11 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION
The Corporation is subject to Freedom of Information Law. The Corporation shall
comply with the Freedom of Information Law of the State of New York, as set forth within
Article 6 of the Public Officers Law.
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SECTION 12 PUBLIC AUTHORITIES ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
The Corporation is subject to the Public Authorities Accountability Act of 2005, as
amended by Chapter 506 of the Laws of 2009 (collectively, the “PAAA”) and shall comply with
the PAAA, as set forth within the New York State Public Authorities Law.
SECTION 13 QUORUM AND ADJOURNED MEETINGS
(a)
A majority of the voting Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business at meetings of the Board. When a quorum is once present to organize a meeting, it shall
not be broken by the subsequent withdrawal of any Director(s).
(b)
A majority of the voting Directors present, whether or not a quorum is present,
may adjourn the Board meeting to another time and place. If a quorum is present at the
adjourned meeting, any business may be transacted that might have been transacted on the
original date of the meeting. Notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to all Directors.
SECTION 14 ACTION BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Any corporate action to be taken by the Board of Directors means action at a meeting of
the Board. Each voting Director shall have one vote regarding any corporate action to be taken
by the Board. Except as otherwise provided by law or these By-Laws, the vote of a majority of
the voting Directors present at the time of the vote at a duly convened meeting at which a quorum
is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors. All reference to actions of the Board of
Directors herein and in the Certificate shall mean the affirmative vote of a majority of the voting
Directors present at the time of the vote at a duly convened meeting at which a quorum is
present.
SECTION 15 ORGANIZATION
At each meeting of the Board of Directors, the Chairperson, or, in his or her absence, the
Vice-Chairperson shall preside. The Secretary, or in his or her absence, a person chosen by a
majority of the voting Directors present, shall keep complete and accurate minutes of the
meeting.
SECTION 16 ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS
Attendance at each meeting of the Board shall be recorded by the Secretary in the
minutes thereof.
SECTION 17 COMPENSATION
The Directors shall serve in their capacity as Directors of the Corporation without
compensation. All Directors may be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred in the
performance of corporate duties.
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SECTION 18 ANNUAL INDEPENDENT AUDIT
The Audit Committee shall present to the Board upon its completion, the annual
independent audit report performed in accordance with the requirements of the PAAA and
generally accepted government auditing standards certified by a firm of independent public
accountants. The certified independent public accounting firm that performs the annual
independent audit shall timely report to the Audit Committee the following:
(i)
the assets and liabilities, including the status of reserve, depreciation, special or
other funds including the receipts and payments of such funds, of the Corporation as of the end
of the fiscal year;
(ii)
the principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust funds, during said
fiscal period;
(iii) the revenue or receipts of the Corporation, both unrestricted and restricted, to
particular purposes during said fiscal period;
(iv)
the expenses or disbursements of the Corporation for both general and restricted
purposes, during said fiscal period; and
(v)
a schedule of the bonds and notes of the Corporation outstanding during said
fiscal period, including all refinancings, calls, refundings, defeasements, and interest rate
exchange or other such agreements, and for any debt issued during the fiscal period, together
with a statement of the amounts redeemed and incurred during such fiscal period as a part of a
schedule of debt issuance that include the date of issuance, term, amount, interest rate, means of
repayment and cost of issuance.
Furthermore, the certified independent public accounting firm that performs the annual
independent audit shall timely report to the Audit Committee the following:
(i)

all critical accounting policies and practices to be used;

(ii)
all alternative treatments of financial information within generally accepted
accounting principles that have been discussed with the management of the Corporation,
ramifications of the use of such alternative disclosures and treatments, and the treatment
preferred by the certified independent public accounting firm;
(iii) other material written communications between the certified independent public
accounting firm and the management of the Corporation, such as the management letter along
with management’s response or plan of corrective action, material corrections identified or
schedule of unadjusted differences, where applicable.
SECTION 19 PROPERTY RIGHTS
No Director of the corporation shall, by reason of that position, have any rights to or
interest in the property or assets of the Corporation.
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ARTICLE III - COMMITTEES
SECTION 1

STANDING COMMITTEES

(a)
The Standing Committees of the Board shall be as described in subparagraph (b)
below. Except as otherwise provided by these By-Laws, each Standing Committee shall consist
of at least three Directors. No Standing Committee shall have authority as to the following
matters:
(i)

The filling of vacancies on the Board of Directors or any committee;

(ii) The amendment or repeal of these By-laws or the adoption of new ByLaws; or
(iii)

The amendment or repeal of any resolution of the Board which by its
terms is not so amendable or repealable.

(b)
Until changed by amendment of these By-Laws, the Corporation
shall have the following Standing Committees:
Audit and Finance Committee. There shall be an Audit and Finance Committee
consisting of at least a majority of Independent members, who shall be elected by a
plurality of the votes cast by the voting Directors of the Corporation at each annual
meeting of the Board and shall serve until the next annual meeting. To the extent
practicable, members of the Audit and Finance Committee should be familiar with
corporate financial and accounting practices. The Audit and Finance Committee shall
recommend to the Board the hiring of a certified independent accounting firm in
compliance with the PAAA to conduct the annual independent audit, establish the
compensation to be paid to the accounting firm and provide direct oversight of the
performance of the annual independent audit. The Audit and Finance Committee shall
have the responsibility to review proposals for the issuance of debt by the Corporation
and its subsidiaries, if any, and make recommendations.
Governance Committee. There shall be a Governance Committee consisting of at
least a majority of Independent members, who shall be elected by a plurality of the votes
cast by the voting Directors of the Corporation at each annual meeting of the Directors
and shall serve until the next annual meeting. The Governance Committee shall keep the
Board informed of current best governance practices, review corporate governance trends,
update the Corporation’s corporate governance principles, and advise the Directors on the
skills and experience required of potential Directors.

8

SECTION 2

SPECIAL COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of the voting Directors, may
create Special Committees, which shall have only the powers specifically delegated to them and
shall in no case have powers which are not authorized for Standing Committees. The members of
Special Committees shall be appointed by a plurality of the votes cast by the voting Directors of
the Corporation.
SECTION 3

MEETINGS

Meetings of committees shall be held at such times and places as shall be fixed by the
respective committee chairpersons, or by vote of a majority of all of the members of the
committee. Written notice shall be mailed (via regular or electronic mail) or delivered to all
members of the committee prior to each meeting. Written minutes of the proceedings shall be
kept at all committee meetings and shall be submitted at the next meeting of the Board. The
President/Chief Executive Officer and Chairperson of the Board of Directors of the Corporation,
or their respective designees, may attend all committee meetings, but will not possess any voting
rights.
SECTION 4

QUORUM

Unless otherwise provided by resolution of the Board of Directors, a majority of all of the
members of a committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.
SECTION 5

MANNER OF ACTING

Any corporate action to be taken by a committee shall mean such action to be taken at a
meeting of the committee. Action by a committee shall be taken by majority vote at a duly
convened meeting of the members of the committee.
ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS
SECTION 1

PRESIDENT/CEO; TREASURER/CFO; SECRETARY; OTHER OFFICERS

The Corporation shall have a President/Chief Executive Officer, a Vice President, a
Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer, a Secretary, and other officers and assistant officers as the
Board of Directors may determine. The offices of president and secretary shall not be held by
the same person. The officers shall have such duties as may be prescribed by these By-Laws and
the Board of Directors.
SECTION 2

TERMS OF OFFICERS

The officers shall be appointed by the Board of Directors at its annual meeting. The term
of office of each officer shall be three (3) years, and each officer shall hold office until a
9

successor is appointed and qualified. No officer shall be re-appointed after serving two (2)
consecutive terms.
SECTION 3

ADDITIONAL OFFICERS

Additional officers may be appointed for such period, have such authority and perform
such duties, either in an administrative or subordinate capacity, as the Board of Directors may
from time to time determine. Such positions may include a Chief Operating Officer, an
Executive Director, and any other position established by the Board of Directors from time to
time.
SECTION 4

REMOVAL OF OFFICERS

Any officer may be removed by a majority vote of voting Directors, with or without
cause, at any time, provided there is a quorum of not less than a majority of the entire Board of
Directors present at the meeting at which such action is taken.
SECTION 5

RESIGNATION

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors, the
President/Chief Executive Officer or the Secretary; provided, however, the President/Chief
Executive Officer must provide written notice of his or her intent to resign to the Board of
Directors and the Secretary must provide written notice of his or her intent to resign to the
President or the Board of Directors. Any such resignation shall take effect at the time specified
therein, or, if no time is specified, then on delivery. Acceptance of the resignation shall not be
necessary to make it effective.
SECTION 6

VACANCIES

A vacancy in any office of the Corporation shall be filled by a majority vote of voting
Directors.
SECTION 7

PRESIDENT/CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Board of Directors shall appoint the President/Chief Executive Officer by resolution,
which resolution shall set the President/Chief Executive Officer’s annual compensation. The
President/Chief Executive Officer shall generally supervise all affairs of the Corporation. The
President/Chief Executive Officer shall perform such other duties as may be assigned to him or
her from time to time by the Board of Directors.
SECTION 8

VICE PRESIDENT

The Board of Directors may appoint a Vice-President. The Vice-President shall perform
the duties of the President in the absence of the President and such other duties as may be
assigned to him or her from time to time by the Board or the President.
SECTION 9

SECRETARY
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It shall be the duty of the Secretary to supervise the preparation of minutes of all meetings
of the Board of Directors and its committees, the giving of all notices required to be given by the
Corporation, and the keeping of a current list of the Corporation's Directors and officers and their
residence addresses. The Secretary shall be responsible for supervising the preparation and
maintenance of the books and records of the Corporation. The Secretary shall attend to such
correspondence as may be assigned to him or her and perform all the duties customarily
incidental to that office and such other duties as may be assigned to him or her by the Board of
Directors or the President/Chief Executive Officer. From time to time, the Board of Directors
employ or contract with an appointed Acting Secretary to whom the Board of Directors may
designate certain duties of the Secretary and other such duties as may be assigned to him or her.
SECTION 10 TREASURER/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
The Board of Directors shall appoint the Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer by resolution,
which resolution shall set the Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer’s annual compensation. It shall
be the duty of the Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation to oversee the financial
affairs of the Corporation, report at each regular meeting of the Board of Directors, and
participate in preparing the annual report of the Corporation and the filing of all required tax
returns and other regulatory reports. The Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer shall perform such
other duties as may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors or the President/Chief
Executive Officer. From time to time, the Board of Directors may employ or contract with an
appointed Acting Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer to whom the Board of Directors may
designate certain duties of the Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer and other such duties as may be
assigned to him or her.
ARTICLE V - CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DRAFTS AND BANK ACCOUNTS
SECTION 1

EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS

The Board of Directors may, except as these By-Laws otherwise provide, authorize any
officer or officers, agent or agents, employee or employees, in the name of and on behalf of the
Corporation, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument, and such authority
may be general or confined to specific instances; but, unless so authorized by the Board of
Directors, or expressly authorized by these By-Laws, no officer, agent or employee shall have
any power or authority to bind the Corporation by any contract or engagement or to pledge its
credit or to render it liable pecuniarily in any amount for any purpose.
SECTION 2

LOANS

No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Corporation unless specifically authorized
by the Board of Directors.
SECTION 3

CHECKS, DRAFTS, ETC.
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All checks, drafts and other orders for the payment of money out of the funds of the
Corporation, and all notes or other evidences of indebtedness of the Corporation, must be signed
on behalf of the Corporation by two of the following persons: the President/Chief Executive
Officer, the Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer or the Chairperson of the Board.
SECTION 4

DEPOSITS

All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time
to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as the
Treasurer may recommend and the Board of Directors approve.
SECTION 5

INVESTMENTS

The Board of Directors may authorize the Corporation to contract with an investment
advisor and custodian to manage its investments in accordance with an investment policy
established by the Board.
ARTICLE VI - GENERAL
SECTION 1

SEAL

The corporate seal shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Corporation, the year of
its organization, and the words “Corporate Seal, New York.” The seal may be used by causing it
or a facsimile thereof to be impressed or affixed or otherwise reproduced.
SECTION 2

BOOKS AND RECORDS

There shall be kept by the Corporation: (1) correct and complete books and records of
account; (2) minutes of the proceedings of the Board of Directors and its committees; (3) a
current list of the Directors and officers of the Corporation and their residence addresses; (4) a
copy of the Certificate of Incorporation; and (6) a copy of these By-laws. The foregoing items
shall be subject to inspection and/or audit at any time by or at the direction of the Board of
Directors.
SECTION 3

INDEMNIFICATION

The Corporation shall indemnify each Director, each officer, and, to the extent authorized
by the Board of Directors, each other person authorized to act for the Corporation or on its
behalf, to the full extent to which indemnification is permitted under the Not-For-Profit
Corporation Law.
SECTION 4

INTERESTED DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The Board of Directors shall adopt a policy regarding conflicts of interest which shall
apply to all directors and officers.
12

SECTION 5

LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The Corporation, either directly or indirectly, including through any subsidiary, is
prohibited from extending or maintaining credit, arranging for the extension of credit or
renewing any extension of credit, in the form of a personal loan to or for any Director, or Officer,
or to any other company, corporation, firm, association or other entity in which one or more of
the Directors or Officers of the Corporation are members, director or officers or hold a
substantial financial interest.
ARTICLE VII - FISCAL YEAR
The fiscal year of the Corporation shall commence on the first day of April of each year
and end on the last day of March.
ARTICLE IX - RULES OF ORDER AND BYLAW CHANGES
SECTION 1

RULES OF ORDER

The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Corporation.
SECTION 2

BYLAW CHANGES

These By-laws may be amended, repealed or adopted only by a majority of the Board of
Directors of the Corporation.
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF THE
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
UNDER SECTION 803 OF THE NOT-FOR-PROFIT CORPORATION LAW
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify:
FIRST:

The name of the corporation is Batavia Development Corporation.

SECOND:

The Certificate of incorporation was filed by the Department of State on

August 15, 1994.
THIRD:

The law under which the Corporation was formed is Section 1411 of the

Not-For-Profit Corporation Law of the State of New York.
FOURTH:

The Corporation is a corporation as defined in subparagraph (a)(5) of

Section 102 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law.
FIFTH:

The certificate of incorporation is amended as follows:

I.

Paragraph NINTH of the Certificate of Incorporation relating to the

purposes and powers of the Corporation is hereby amended to read in its entirety as follows:
NINTH:

The number of its directors shall be not less than five nor more

than eleven. A director need not be a member.
SIXTH:

The Secretary of State is designated as agent of the Corporation upon

whom process against it may be served. The address to which the Secretary of State shall
forward copies of process accepted on behalf of the Corporation is: Batavia Development
Corporation, 1 Batavia City Center, Batavia, New York 14020.
SEVENTH: The Corporation has no members. This Certificate of Amendment was
authorized by a majority of the Corporation’s Board of Directors entitled to vote thereon at a
meeting of the Board of Directors in which majority of the Board was present.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

310047 4840-3856-2965 v1

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed this Certificate of Amendment this ____ day of
_________, 2020.

By: ________________________________
Name: Lori Aratari
Title: President

STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF GENESEE

)
) SS.:

LORI ARATARI, being duly sworn, deposes and says that she is the President of Batavia
Development Corporation and is the person who signed the foregoing Certificate of Amendment
and knows the contents thereof and that the same is true to her knowledge.

____________________________
Lori Aratari

Sworn to before me this
____ day of ___________, 2020.

_________________________
Notary Public
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF THE
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
UNDER SECTION 803 OF THE NOT-FOR-PROFIT CORPORATION LAW

FILER:
Robert G. Murray, Esq.
HARRIS BEACH PLLC
726 Exchange Street, Suite 1000
Buffalo, New York 14210
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BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
RESOLUTION
A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Batavia Development Corporation was
convened on June 25, 2020.
The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:
RESOLUTION OF THE BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION
(THE
“CORPORATION”)
AUTHORIZING THE (i) EXECUTION AND FILING OF
A CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF THE
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION
803
OF
THE
NOT-FOR-PROFIT
CORPORATION LAW; AND (ii) AMENDING OF THE
BY-LAWS OF THE CORPORATION
WHEREAS, the Batavia Development Corporation (the “Corporation”) was
established as a not-for-profit local development corporation of the State of New York
organized under Section 1411 of the New York State Not-For-Profit Corporation Law
(“NPCL”) and is a corporation as defined in sub-paragraph (a)(5) of Section 102 of the
NPCL, for which a Certificate of Incorporation was filed on August 15, 1994 (the
“Certificate”); and
WHEREAS, the Corporation desires to increase the size of the Board of
Directors from nine (9) Directors to eleven (11) Directors; and
WHEREAS, in furtherance of increasing the size of the Board of Directors, the
Corporation desires to adopt a resolution to authorize (i) the execution and delivery of a
Certificate of Amendment (the “Certificate of Amendment”) to amend the Certificate and
(ii) amending the Corporation’s By-Laws, last revised June 27, 2019 (the “By-Laws”), to
reflect the same; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Articles II and IX of the By-Laws, the By-Laws may
only be amended by the affirmative vote of a majority of voting Directors at a duly
convened meeting of the Board of Directors at which a quorum is present.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE DIRECTORS OF THE
BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AS FOLLOWS:
Section 1.
Pursuant to and in accordance with NPCL Section 803, the
Corporation hereby approves and authorizes the execution of a Certificate of
Amendment substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. The Corporation
hereby further authorizes the filing of said Certificate of Amendment with the
Department of State of the State of New York.
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Section 2.
Pursuant to and in accordance with Articles II and IX of the
By-Laws, the Corporation hereby amends and restates its By-Laws, a copy of which is
attached hereto as Exhibit B and as annexed to the minutes of this meeting and made a
part hereof. The Amended and Restated By-laws of the Corporation are hereby adopted.
Section 3.
The directors, officers, employees and agents of the Corporation
are hereby authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Corporation
to do all acts and things required and to execute and deliver all such certificates,
instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such
further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the director, officer,
employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing
resolution and to cause compliance by the Corporation with all of the terms, covenants
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Corporation.
Section 4.
The Corporation hereby ratifies, confirms, and approves any and
all prior actions and approvals heretofore undertaken in connection with the foregoing.
Section 5.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

Dated: June 25, 2020
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EXHIBIT A
Certificate of Amendment
[See Attached]

EXHIBIT B
Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Corporation
[See Attached]

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
AUDIT AND FINANCE MEETING AGENDA
Zoom Meeting ID: 267 152 6164
Thursday June 25, 2020
8:30 AM
Page
Number

Pg. 2
Pg. 3

Topic
Call to Order
Topics
1. June 19th, 2020 Minutes
2. Audit
New Business
Adjournment

Action

Vote
Discussion/Vote

Vote

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (BDC)
Audit & Finance Committee Meeting
Meeting Minutes Wednesday June 19, 2019
Attendance
BDC Attendees: Martin Moore, Rebecca Cohen, Wesley Bedford, Pier Cipollone, Rachael Tabelski (Director of Economic
Development)
Excused:
Lori Aratari
Guest/Media: Laura Landers and Nicole Ryan from Freed Maxick, CPA’s
Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 8:31 a.m. at City Hall.
Topics:
Minutes- The November 15, 2018 minutes were presented for approval.
R. Cohen made a motion to approve the November 15, 2018 meeting minutes; the motion was seconded by W. Bedford
and approved by all Committee Members present.
2018-2019 Audit- The Committee reviewed the agency audit results, and heard from Auditors Nicole White and Laura
Landers, of Freed Maxick, regarding the Corporations financial position. The BDC Board engaged Freed Maxick, a
certified public accounting firm, to perform an independent audit of the 2018-19 financial statements. The independent
audit was preformed to issue an opinion on the financial statements of the BDC for the year ending March 31, 2019.
Included in the communication was a management letter to the Board of Directors, a report regarding internal controls
over financial reporting in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and the consolidated financial statements.
Freed Maxick affirmed that no material deficiencies in internal controls were identified during the audit. They were
issuing a clean unmodified opinion and that there were no findings under the New York State Public Authority
Accountability Act. The firm also affirmed that, in their opinion, the audited financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the BDC as of March 31, 2018, in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.
The BDC had little grant activity in 2018-19, only recording $13,322 as non-operating revenues and expenses related to
the $600,0000 Downtown Revitalization Initiative- Building Improvement Fund. An outstanding receivable from Ellicott
Station remains at $81,429. The Corporation had a 3% decrease in net position at the end of the fiscal year.
W. Bedford made a motion to advance the 2018-2019 Audit to the full board for approval, the motion was seconded by
R. Cohen and approved by all members present.
Adjournment
W. Bedford made a motion to adjourn the meeting, the motion was seconded by R. Cohen and approved by all members
present. The meeting stood adjourned at 8:53 a.m.
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REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

__________________________________________________________________
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MARCH 31, 2020

Members of the Board of Directors
Batavia Development Corporation
One Batavia City Centre
Batavia, New York 14020
Members of the Board:
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XXXXX, 2020

We are pleased to present this report related to our audit of the basic financial statements of the Batavia Development
Corporation, New York (the Corporation) for the year ended March 31, 2020. This report summarizes certain matters
required by professional standards to be communicated to you in your oversight responsibility for the Corporation’s
financial reporting process.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Corporation Board and management and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. It will be our pleasure to respond
to any questions you have regarding this report. We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the Corporation.
Very truly yours,
Freed Maxick CPAs, P.C.
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Required Communications
Generally accepted auditing standards (AU-C 260, The Auditors Communications with Those Charged with
Governance) require the auditor to promote effective two-way communication between the auditor and those charged
with governance. Consistent with this requirement, the following summarizes our responsibilities regarding the
financial statement audit as well as observations arising from our audit that are significant and relevant to your
responsibility to oversee the financial and related compliance reporting process.
Area

Comments
Our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, have been
described to you in our arrangement letter dated April 9, 2020. Our
audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or
those charged with governance of their responsibilities which are
also described in that letter.

Overview of the Planned Scope and
Timing of the Financial Statement Audit

We have issued a separate communication regarding the planned
scope and timing of our audit and have discussed with you our
identification of significant risks of material misstatement.
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Our Responsibilities with Regard to the
Financial Statement Audit

Accounting Policies and Practices

Preferability of Accounting Policies and Practices
Under generally accepted accounting principles, in certain
circumstances, management may select among alternative
accounting practices.
In our view, in such circumstances,
management has selected the preferable accounting practice.
Adoption of, or Change in, Accounting Policies
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Management has the ultimate responsibility for the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used by the
Corporation. The Corporation did not adopt any significant new
accounting policies nor have there been any changes in existing
significant accounting policies during the current period.

Significant or Unusual Transactions
We did not identify any significant or unusual transactions or
significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas
for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.
Management’s Judgments and Accounting Estimates

We are not aware of any significant accounting estimates noted
during our audit.
Basis of Accounting

The financial statements were prepared on assumption that the
entity will continue as a going concern.

Audit Adjustments

Audit adjustments, other than misstatements that are clearly trivial,
proposed by us and recorded by the Corporation are shown on the
attached “Summary of Recorded Audit Adjustments.”

Uncorrected Misstatements

We are not aware of any uncorrected misstatements other than
misstatements that are clearly trivial.
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Required Communications (Continued)
We have included an “Other Matters” section in the auditor’s
report. This section discusses the required supplementary
information and supplementary information related to the financial
reporting.

Disagreements with Management

We encountered no disagreements with management over the
application of significant accounting principles, the basis for
management’s judgments on any significant matters, the scope of
the audit, or significant disclosures to be included in the financial
statements.

Consultations with Other Accountants

We are not aware of any consultations management had with
other accountants about accounting or auditing matters.

Significant Issues Discussed with
Management

No significant issues arising from the audit were discussed or
were the subject of correspondence with management.

Significant Difficulties Encountered in
Performing the Audit

We did not encounter any significant difficulties in dealing with
management during the audit.

Letter Communicating a Material
Weakness in Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting

We have separately communicated a material weakness in
internal control over financial reporting identified during our audit
of the financial statements as required by Government Auditing
Standards. This communication is attached as Exhibit A.

Significant Written Communication
Between Management and Our Firm

A copy of the representation letter provided to us by management
is attached as Exhibit B.
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Departure From the Auditor’s Standard
Report

2

Batavia Development Corporation
Summary of Recorded Audit Adjustments
Year Ended March 31, 2020
Number
AJE #1

Date

Name

Account No

3/31/2020 Accounts Payable
3/31/2020 Professional Services

Debit

2000 ENT01
7000 ENT01

12,642

2200 ENT01
4000.10 ENT01

20,000

Credit
12,642

To reverse a reversing entry and
adjust accounts payable and professional services
expense account to actual as of 3/31/2020.
3/31/2020 Unearned Revenue
3/31/2020 Grant Revenue - COB Opportunity Zone Fund
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To reclassify Opportunity Zone Fund money received as
unearned revenue as the related conditions of the funds
have not been met as of 3/31/2020.
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AJE #2

3

20,000

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
The GASB has issued several statements not yet implemented by the Corporation. The Corporation’s management
has not yet determined the effect these Statements will have on the Corporation’s financial statements. However, the
Corporation plans to implement all standards by the required dates. The Statement which might impact the
Corporation is as follows:
Summary of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases
This Statement, issued in June 2017, will be effective for the Corporation with its fiscal year ending March 31, 2023.
This Statement better meets the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial
reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by
requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases
and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provision of the contract. It
establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the
right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an
intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of
resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.
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The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. Earlier
application is encouraged.
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EXHIBIT A – LETTER COMMUNICATING A MATERIAL WEAKNESS IN
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
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Letter Communicating a Material Weakness in
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
XXXXXXXX, 2020
To Management and the Board of Directors
Batavia Development Corporation
Batavia, New York
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In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Batavia Development Corporation (the Corporation)
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, we considered the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed
below, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness.
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A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A deficiency in design exists when (a) a control necessary to meet the control
objective is missing, or (b) an existing control is not properly designed so that, even if the control operates as
designed, the control objective would not be met. A deficiency in operation exists when a properly designed control
does not operate as designed or when the person performing the control does not possess the necessary authority or
competence to perform the control effectively.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Corporation’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the following deficiency in the Corporation’s internal control to
be a material weakness:
MATERIAL WEAKNESS
Accounting and Financial Reporting - Liabilities
Observation
During our audit of the Corporation we noted that legal services, performed prior to March 31, 2020 in the amount of
$28,591, were not recorded as accounts payable. In addition, the Corporation received a $20,000 grant from the City
of Batavia and recorded those funds as revenue. However, the requirements within the agreement were not met as of
March 31, 2020 and, therefore, the funds should have been reclassified as unearned revenue as of yearend.
Recommendation
We recommend that the Corporation inquire of the attorney at yearend to obtain a listing of any outstanding legal fees
for proper recognition for financial reporting purposes. In addition, we would recommend the Corporation review their
funding sources to ensure all revenue has met the requirements to be considered earned as of yearend.
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Potential Effects
Accounts payable and related expenditures were understated by $28,591. Also, unearned revenue was understated
and revenues were overstated by $20,000 as of March 31, 2020. For an overall overstatement of net position by
$48,591.
Management Response
BDC Management has been made aware of substantial adjusting entries needed to correct our financial statements at
our fiscal year end. The adjusting entries were caused by non-invoiced professional services for the fiscal year 19-20
that were not recorded properly for the work performed from April 2019 – March 2020. To correct this action, we will
request an invoice, or outstanding services statement from all of our professional services for any work performed in
the fiscal year that has not been invoiced yet. We will request these figures the final day of our fiscal year, March 31st.
Due to the nature of a grant received, but not realized to the nature of the grant funding, it was booked as operating
revenue in error. It should be viewed as unearned revenue until the purpose of the grant has been committed and
executed. If said funds are not used in the fiscal year, they should not be viewed as operational, but unearned revenue
until our grant commitment is sufficed. When a grant is awarded and received by the BDC, but the funds have not
been expended, it should be discussed with the independent auditors the best method of presenting these on our
financials and financial statements to ensure compliance with GAAP and other accounting principles.
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Batavia, New York
XXXXXXXX, 2020
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This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, members of the Board of
Directors, and others within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than
these specified parties.
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EXHIBIT B - SIGNIFICANT WRITTEN COMMUNICATION
BETWEEN MANAGEMENT AND OUR FIRM
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors of
Batavia Development Corporation
Batavia, New York
Report on the Financial Statements
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We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Batavia Development Corporation (the
Corporation) and its wholly owned subsidiaries and Creek Park Batavia LLC (CPL) as of and for the years ended
March 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, which collectively comprise
the Corporation’s financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
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Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Corporation’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Corporation, as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, and the respective changes in
consolidated financial position and its cash flows thereof, for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information that
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the
consolidated financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational economic, or historical context. Our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements are not affected by this missing information.
Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements that
collectively comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information, as listed in the
table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements.
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The supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, is the responsibility of management and is derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion the supplementary information, as listed in the
table of contents, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated XXXX, 2020 on our
consideration of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.
Batavia, New York
XXXX, 2020
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BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
MARCH 31,

2020
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Total assets

$
$

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Total current liabilities

95,670
131,288
226,958

$

30,940
3,449
20,000
54,389

$

$

$

172,569
172,569

AF
T

Net Position
Unrestricted
Total net position

2019

$

D

R

Total liabilities and net position

See notes to accompanying financial statements.
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226,958

84,847
94,651
179,498

23,493
3,264
26,757
152,741
152,741

$

179,498

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31,

2020
Operating revenues
City of Batavia
Commitment fees
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

$

110,000
4,000
964
114,964

Operating expenses
Salary and benefits
Insurance
Office expenses
Travel and training
Marketing and public relations
Professional services
Total operating expenses

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Grant pass-through revenues
Grant pass-through expenses
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Change in net position

$

D

Net position - ending

R

Net position - beginning

See notes to accompanying financial statements.
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$

110,000
109
110,109

57,388
4,547
7
974
3,547
28,673
95,136

62,759
6,070
658
1,645
4,269
39,686
115,087

19,828

(4,978)

36,637
(36,637)
-

13,222
(13,222)
-

19,828

(4,978)

152,741

157,719

AF
T

Operating income (loss)

2019

172,569

$

152,741

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31,

2020
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from governmental agencies
Payments of service providers and suppliers
Payments for employee services
Other operating revenues
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$

110,000
(19,195)
(57,203)
4,964
38,566

2019
$

28,571
(42,330)
(64,315)
109
(77,965)

20,000
(47,743)
(27,743)

181,429
(100,000)
81,429

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

10,823

3,464

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year

84,847

81,383

AF
T

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Proceeds from pass-through grants
Payments of pass-through grants
Net cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year

95,670

$

84,847

$

19,828

$

(4,978)

$

18,553
185
38,566

$

(81,429)
9,998
(1,556)
(77,965)

D

R

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
(Increase) in receivables
Increase in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$

See notes to accompanying financial statements.
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BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements of the Batavia Development Corporation (the Corporation) have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S.GAAP) as applied to government
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
A.

REPORTING ENTITY
The Corporation was formed under the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law of the State of New York for the purpose
of creating employment opportunities, thereby improving the quality and condition of life in the City of Batavia,
New York (the City). This is accomplished by encouraging and affecting the retention of existing business and
industry, as well as encouraging the location and expansion of residential, commercial, industrial, and
manufacturing facilities in the City. The Corporation is subject to the provisions of the New York State Public
Authorities Law. As a local authority under this law, the Corporation is required to make certain information
available to the public. Creek Park Batavia, LLC is included in the reporting entity since it is a sole member of the
Corporation.

B.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

AF
T

The financial reporting entity consists of a (a) the primary entity which is the Batavia Development Corporation,
(b) organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary entity is such that exclusion would cause
the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete as set forth in GASB Statement No. 14,
as amended by GASB Statement No. 39. The decision to include a potential unit in the Corporation’s reporting
entity is based on several criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB No. 39, including
legal standing, fiscal dependency, and financial accountability.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

D

C.

R

The Corporation’s financial statements consist of three statements that provide information about the
Corporation’s activities. The first statement is the Statements of Net Position, which lists all of the Corporation’s
assets and liabilities with the difference reported as net position. The net position is classified as unrestricted for
the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Corporation and Creek Park Batavia, LLC
(CPL). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity
with U.S.GAAP.
D.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The financial statements of the Corporation are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash transaction takes place. Nonexchange transactions,
in which the Corporation gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving equal value in exchange,
include grants. Revenue from grants is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have
been satisfied.

E.

INCOME TAXES
The Corporation is a Public Benefit Corporation of the State of New York and is exempt from federal income
taxes under Section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has
been made in the accompanying financial statements.
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BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F.

RECEIVABLES
Receivables are reported at their net realizable value. Generally accepted accounting principles require the
establishment of an allowance for uncollectible receivables. No allowance for uncollectible receivables has been
provided since management believes that such allowance would not be material.

G.

UNEARNED REVENUE
Unearned revenue arises when resources are received by the Corporation before it has legal claim to them, such
as when grant funds are received prior to the occurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods
when the Corporation has legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed and
revenue is recognized. At March 31, 2020, the Corporation has $20,000 in unearned revenues related to grant
funding. There was no unearned revenue as of March 31, 2019.

H.

NET POSITION
Net position is classified into three categories according to external donor restrictions or availability of assets for
satisfaction of the Corporation’s obligations. The Corporation’s net position is classified as follows:

AF
T

a. Net Investment in Capital Assets: This represents the Corporation’s total investment in capital assets, net of
outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets. To the extent debt has been incurred but not yet
expended for capital assets, such amounts are not included as a component of net investment in capital
assets. The Corporation did not have any net position in this category at March 31, 2020 and 2019.
b. Restricted Net Position: This includes assets in which the Corporation is legally or contractually obligated to
spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third parties. The Corporation did not have any
restricted net position as of March 31, 2020 and 2019.

I.

Unrestricted Net Position: Unrestricted net position represent resources derived from operating revenue.
These resources are used for transactions relating to the general operations of the Corporation, and may be
used at the discretion of the Board of Directors to meet current expenses for any purpose.

R

c.

USE OF ESTIMATES IN PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

J.

D

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the purpose of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Corporation considers all cash and cash equivalents to be
unrestricted including demand accounts and certificates of deposit with an original maturity of three months or
less.
K.

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
The Corporation has evaluated the provisions of GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations,
Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct
Borrowing and Direct Placements, and Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests-an Amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and 61, which became effective for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020, and determined
that they have no significant impact on the Corporation’s financial statements.
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BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The following are GASB Statements that have been issued recently and are currently being evaluated, by the
Corporation, for their potential impact in future years.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Statement No. 87, Leases, which will be effective for the year ending March 31, 2023.
Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period, which will
be effective for the year ending March 31, 2022.
Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, which will be effective for the year ending March 31, 2023.
Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, which will be effective for the year ending March 31, 2023.
Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates, which will be effective for the year ending
March 31, 2023.
Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements,
which will be effective for the year ending March 31, 2024.
Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, which will be effective for the
year ending March 31, 2024.
Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and
84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32, which will be effective for the year ending March 31,
2023.

L.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

AF
T

On May 8, 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain
Authoritative Guidance in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The effective dates of GASB Statements not
yet implemented by the Corporation have been updated above to reflect the impact of this Statement.

Certain 2018 amounts have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation in the Statements of
Cash Flows.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Collateral is required for demand and time deposits and certificates of deposit not covered by Federal Deposit
Insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations of the United States and its agencies
and obligations of the State and municipalities and school districts.

D

A.

R

NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES

Investment and Deposit Policy
The Corporation currently follows an investment and deposit policy as directed by State statutes, the overall
objective of which is to adequately safeguard the principal amount of funds invested or deposited; conformance
with federal, state and other legal requirements; and provide sufficient liquidity of invested funds in order to meet
obligations as they become due. Oversight of investment activity is the responsibility of the Board of Directors.
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of investments will be affected by changing interest rates. The
Corporation’s investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair
value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
Credit Risk
The Corporation’s policy is to minimize the risk of loss due to failure of an issuer or other counterparty to an
investment to fulfill its obligations. The Corporation’s investment and deposit policy authorizes it to purchase the
following types of investments:
•
•
•
•

Interest bearing demand accounts.
Certificates of deposit.
Obligations of the United States Treasury and United States agencies.
Obligations of New York State and its localities.
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BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of a depository financial institution, the reporting entity
may not recover its deposits. All deposits of the Corporation including interest bearing demand accounts and
certificates of deposit, in excess of the amount insured under the provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act
(FDIC) shall be secured by a pledge of securities with an aggregate value equal to 102% of the aggregate
amount of deposits. The Corporation restricts the securities to the following eligible items:
• Obligations issued, fully insured or guaranteed as to the payment of principal and interest, by the
United States Treasury and United States agencies.
• Obligations issued or fully insured or guaranteed by New York State and its localities.
NOTE 3. RECEIVABLES
Significant revenues accrued by the Corporation include the following at March 31:

2020
$

Grants receivable:
Downtown Revitalization Initiative Building Improvement Fund
Total receivables

$

AF
T

Accounts receivable:
Ellicott Station Development LLC/Savarino Co.- sale of Ellicott Station LLC

2019

81,429

$

81,429

49,859
131,288

$

13,222
94,651

NOTE 4. REVENUE AND CONCENTRATIONS

R

The Corporation receives support and revenue primarily from the City. Support and revenue are recognized as
services are performed. The Corporation recognized $110,000 of revenue from the City of Batavia, for the years
ended March 31, 2020 and 2019.
NOTE 5. PASS THROUGH GRANTS

D

During the year ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Corporation coordinated a reimbursable pass through grant
agreement with the NYS Office of Community Renewal. The grant is classified as Corporation non-operating
revenues and expenses. The grant revenues and expenses consisted of the following for the year ended March 31:

2020

Downtown Revitalization Initiative Grant
Total grant revenue

$
$

36,637
36,637

2019
$
$

13,222
13,222

NOTE 6. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus outbreak a “Public Health Emergency
of International Concern” and on March 10, 2020, declared it to be a pandemic. Actions taken around the world to
help mitigate the spread of the coronavirus include restrictions on travel, and quarantines in certain areas, and forced
closures for certain types of public places and businesses. The Corporation’s management has assessed these
events and the impact of these restrictions and closures related to the Corporation’s operations. As of the date of
these financial statements and as these events continue to unfold management believes there will be an impact
related to charges for services, rental revenues, financing income and/or other classifications of revenues, that the
Corporation will receive in 2020. Management believes that these revenues will be lower in 2020 than anticipated in
the adopted 2020 budget. Management has assessed the financial condition and the potential impact on revenues
and has determined that the Corporation has assets and fund balances to absorb this potential decrease in revenues
for 2020.
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BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

D

R

AF
T

Management has evaluated subsequent events through XXXX, 2020 which is the date the financial statements are
available for issuance, and have determined there are no subsequent events, other than the event noted above, that
require disclosure under generally accepted accounting principles.
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BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
MARCH 31, 2020

Batavia
Development
Corporation
$
$

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Due to other funds
Total liabilities
Net Position
Unrestricted
Total net position

30,940
3,449
20,000
54,389

$

$

172,469
172,469

R

Total liabilities and net position

$

AF

$

78,342
131,288
17,228
226,858

$

17,328
17,328

T

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Due from other funds
Total assets

Creek Park
Batavia LLC

226,858

D

(1) This represents a loan from the BDC to the LLC.

11

$

17,228
17,228

Eliminations
$
$

$

100
100
17,328

Total

$
(17,228) (1)
(17,228) $

95,670
131,288
226,958

$
(17,228) (1)
(17,228)

30,940
3,449
20,000
54,389

$

(17,228)

172,569
172,569
$

226,958

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
MARCH 31, 2019

Batavia
Development
Corporation
$
$

Liabilities
Current liablities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Total liabilities
Net Position
Unrestricted
Total net position

23,493
3,264
26,757

$

$

152,641
152,641

$

179,398

R

Total liabilities and net position

$

AF

$

67,519
94,651
17,228
179,398

17,328
17,328

T

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Due from other funds
Total assets

Creek Park
Batavia LLC

D

(1) This represents a loan from the BDC to the LLC.
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$

17,228
17,228

Eliminations
$
$

$

100
100
17,328

Total

$
(17,228) (1)
(17,228) $

84,847
94,651
179,498

$
(17,228) (1)
(17,228)

23,493
3,264
26,757

$

(17,228)

152,741
152,741
$

179,498

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Batavia
Development
Corporation

Operating revenues
City of Batavia
Commitment fees
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenue

$

Net position - ending

-

$

$

-

Total
$

110,000
4,000
964
114,964

57,388
4,547
7
974
3,547
28,673
95,136

-

-

57,388
4,547
7
974
3,547
28,673
95,136

19,828

-

-

19,828

36,637
(36,637)
-

-

-

36,637
(36,637)
-

19,828

-

-

19,828

100

-

152,741

AF

D

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Grant pass-through revenues
Grant pass-through expenses
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Net position - beginning

$

R

Operating income

Change in net position

110,000
4,000
964
114,964

Eliminations

T

Operating expenses
Salary and benefits
Insurance
Office expenses
Travel and training
Marketing and public relations
Professional services
Total operating expenses

Creek Park
Batavia LLC

152,641
172,469

13

$

100

$

-

$

172,569

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Batavia
Development
Corporation

Operating revenues
City of Batavia
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenue

$

Operating expenses
Salary and benefits
Insurance
Office expenses
Travel and training
Marketing and public relations
Professional services
Total operating expenses

-

Eliminations
$

-

-

-

-

T

AF
$

-

13,222
(13,222)
(100)
(100)

100
100

(5,078)

100

-

-

-

R

D

Net position - ending

$

(4,978)

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Grant pass-through revenues
Grant pass-through expenses
Capital contribution revenues
Capital contribution expenses
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Net position - beginning

110,000
109
110,109
62,759
6,070
658
1,645
4,269
39,686
115,087

Operating loss

Change in net position

Creek Park
Batavia LLC

157,719
152,641

(1) This represents a capital contribution made from the BDC to the LLC.
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$

100

Total
$

62,759
6,070
658
1,645
4,269
39,686
115,087
(4,978)

(100) (1)
100 (1)
-

$

-

110,000
109
110,109

13,222
(13,222)
(4,978)
157,719

$

152,741

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Batavia
Development
Corporation

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from governmental agencies
Payments of service providers and suppliers
Payments for employee services
Other operating revenue
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year

Net cash provided by operating activities

$

-

$

110,000
(19,195)
(57,203)
4,964
38,566

-

20,000
(47,743)
(27,743)

10,823

-

-

10,823

67,519

17,328

-

84,847

$

78,342

$

17,328

$

-

$

95,670

$

19,828

$

-

$

-

$

19,828

D

Reconciliation of operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Increase in accounts payable
Increase in accrued liabilities

-

AF

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

$

Total

20,000
(47,743)
(27,743)

R

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Proceeds from pass-through grants
Payments of pass-through grants
Net cash used by non-capital financing activities

110,000
(19,195)
(57,203)
4,964
38,566

Eliminations

T

$

Creek Park
Batavia LLC

18,553
185
$

38,566
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$

-

$

-

18,553
185
$

38,566

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Batavia
Development
Corporation

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from governmental agencies
Payments of service providers and suppliers
Payments for employee services
Other operating revenue
Net cash used by operating activities

28,571
(42,330)
(64,315)
109
(77,965)

$

-

Eliminations
$

T

$

Creek Park
Batavia LLC

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Proceeds from pass-through grants
Payments of pass-through grants
Capital contribution received
Capital contribution paid
Repayment of loan
Net cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities

-

Total
$

28,571
(42,330)
(64,315)
109
(77,965)
181,429
(100,000)
81,429

100
17,228
17,328

(100) (1)
100 (1)
(17,228) (2)
(17,228)

(17,228)
(17,228)

-

17,228 (2)
17,228

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(13,864)

17,328

-

3,464

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year

81,383

-

-

81,383

D

R

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment of loan to subsidiary
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

AF

181,429
(100,000)
(100)
81,329

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year

Reconciliation of operating loss to
net cash used by operating activities
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to
net cash used by operating activities:
(Increase) in receivables
Increase in accounts payable
(Decrease) in accrued liabilities
Net cash used by operating activities

-

$

67,519

$

17,328

$

-

$

84,847

$

(4,978)

$

-

$

-

$

(4,978)

(81,429)
9,998
(1,556)
$

(77,965)

(1) This represents a capital contribution made from the BDC to the LLC.
(2) This represents loan activity between the BDC to the LLC.
16

$

-

$

-

(81,429)
9,998
(1,556)
$

(77,965)

D

R

AF
T

INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE

AF
T

R

D

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of
Batavia Development Corporation
Batavia, New York

AF
T

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of the Batavia Development Corporation (the
Corporation), and its wholly owned subsidiary, Creek Park Batavia, LLC (CPL) as of and for the year ended March 31,
2020, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated XXXXXXXX, 2020.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

R

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the Corporation’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.

D

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify
certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses, as item
2020-001, that we consider to be a material weakness.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
17

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the Corporation’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for
any other purpose.

D

R

AF
T

Batavia, New York
XXXX, 2020
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BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
2020-001 Accounting and Financial Reporting – Liabilities
Criteria: Accounts payable should be reported as the goods and/or services are incurred and unearned revenue
should be reported when resources are received by the Corporation before it has legal claim to them, such as
when grant funds are received prior to the occurrence of qualifying expenditures.
Condition: Legal services were performed prior to March 31, 2020 in the amount of $28,591 and not recorded as
accounts payable. In addition, $20,000 was received from the City of Batavia, per a grant agreement, but the
grant requirements were not met as of March 31, 2020 and, therefore, the funds were considered unearned as of
yearend.
Cause: Legal invoices, related to services provided through March 31, 2020, were being billed by the attorney
until such time as a project was completed and, therefore, were unintentionally omitted at yearend from the
accounts payable. The funds received from the City of Batavia were expected to be expended as of March 31,
2020, however when they were not expended by that time, the Corporation inadvertently neglected to reclassify
the revenue as unearned at March 31, 2020.

AF
T

Effect or potential effect: Accounts payable and related expenditures were understated by $28,591. Also,
unearned revenue was understated and revenues were overstated by $20,000 as of March 31, 2020.
Recommendation: We recommend that the Corporation inquire of the attorney at yearend to obtain a listing of
any outstanding legal fees for proper recognition for financial reporting purposes. In addition, we would
recommend the Corporation review their funding sources to ensure all revenue has met the requirements to be
considered earned as of yearend.

R

Views of responsible officials: BDC Management has been made aware of substantial adjusting entries needed
to correct our financial statements at our fiscal year end. The adjusting entries were caused by non-invoiced
professional services for the fiscal year 19-20 that were not recorded properly for the work performed from April
2019 – March 2020. To correct this action, we will request an invoice, or outstanding services statement from all
of our professional services for any work performed in the fiscal year that has not been invoiced yet. We will
request these figures the final day of our fiscal year, March 31st.
Due to the nature of a grant received, but not realized to the nature of the grant funding, it was booked as
operating revenue in error. It should be viewed as unearned revenue until the purpose of the grant has been
committed and executed. If said funds are not used in the fiscal year, they should not be viewed as operational,
but unearned revenue until our grant commitment is sufficed. When a grant is awarded and received by the
BDC, but the funds have not been expended, it should be discussed with the independent auditors the best
method of presenting these on our financials and financial statements to ensure compliance with GAAP and
other accounting principles.

D

I.
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MEMORANDUM
To:

BDC Board of Directors

From: Andrew Maguire, Director of Economic Development
Re:

2019-2020 Audit Adjustments – Corrective Action Plan

Date: June 25, 2020

Corrective Action Plan and Response: BDC Management has been made aware of substantial adjusting
entries needed to correct our financial statements at our fiscal year end. The adjusting entries were
caused by non-invoiced professional services for the fiscal year 19-20 that were not recorded properly
for the work performed from April 2019- March 2020. To correct this action, we will request an invoice,
or outstanding services statement from all of our professional services for any work performed in the
fiscal year that has not been invoiced yet. We will request these figures the final day of our fiscal year,
March 31st.
Due to the nature of a grant received, but not realized to the nature of the grant funding, it was booked
as operating revenue in error. It should be viewed as unearned revenue until the purpose of the grant
has been committed and executed. If said funds are not used in the fiscal year, they should not be
viewed as operational, but unearned revenue until our grant commitment is sufficed. When a grant is
awarded and received by the BDC, but the funds have not been expended, it should be discussed with
the independent auditors the best method of presenting these on our financials and financial
statements to ensure compliance with GAAP and other accounting principles.

Annual Report for Batavia Development Corporation

Run Date:
06/24/2020
Status:
UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date: N/A

Fiscal Year Ending: 03/31/2020

Governance Information (Authority-Related)
Question
1.
Has the Authority prepared its annual report on operations and accomplishments for the reporting period as
required by section 2800 of PAL?
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

As required by section 2800(9) of PAL, did the Authority prepare an assessment of the effectiveness of its
internal controls?
Has the lead audit partner for the independent audit firm changed in the last five years in accordance with
section 2802(4) of PAL?
Does the independent auditor provide non-audit services to the Authority?
Does the Authority have an organization chart?
Are any Authority staff also employed by another government agency?
Has the Authority posted their mission statement to their website?
Has the Authority's mission statement been revised and adopted during the reporting period?
Attach the Authority's measurement report, as required by section 2824-a of PAL and provide the URL.

Response
Yes

Yes

URL (if Applicable)
http://bataviadevelopmentcorp.org/wpcontent/uploads/2020/06/2020-BDC-Annual-Report-final-6.25.20.
pdf
http://bataviadevelopmentcorp.org/about-us/reports

Yes

N/A

No
Yes
No
Yes
No

N/A
http://bataviadevelopmentcorp.org/about-us
http://bataviadevelopmentcorp.org/about-us
N/A
http://bataviadevelopmentcorp.org/wpcontent/uploads/2020/06/NYS-Public-Authority-Mission-Statement2020-2021-1.pdf
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Governance Information (Board-Related)
Question
1.
Has the Board established a Governance Committee in accordance with Section 2824(7) of PAL?
2.
Has the Board established an Audit Committee in accordance with Section 2824(4) of PAL?
3.
Has the Board established a Finance Committee in accordance with Section 2824(8) of PAL?
4.
Provide a URL link where a list of Board committees can be found (including the name of the committee and
the date established):
5.
Does the majority of the Board meet the independence requirements of Section 2825(2) of PAL?
6.
Provide a URL link to the minutes of the Board and committee meetings held during the covered fiscal year
7.
Has the Board adopted bylaws and made them available to Board members and staff?

Response
Yes
Yes
Yes

URL (If Applicable)
N/A
N/A
N/A
http://bataviadevelopmentcorp.org/about-us/officers

Yes

8.

Has the Board adopted a code of ethics for Board members and staff?

Yes

9.
10.

Does the Board review and monitor the Authority's implementation of financial and management controls?
Does the Board execute direct oversight of the CEO and management in accordance with Section 2824(1) of
PAL?
Has the Board adopted policies for the following in accordance with Section 2824(1) of PAL?
Salary and Compensation
Time and Attendance
Whistleblower Protection
Defense and Indemnification of Board Members
Has the Board adopted a policy prohibiting the extension of credit to Board members and staff in accordance
with Section 2824(5) of PAL?
Are the Authority's Board members, officers, and staff required to submit financial disclosure forms in
accordance with Section 2825(3) of PAL?
Was a performance evaluation of the board completed?
Was compensation paid by the Authority made in accordance with employee or union contracts?
Has the board adopted a conditional/additional compensation policy governing all employees?

Yes
Yes

N/A
http://bataviadevelopmentcorp.org/about-us/minutes
http://bataviadevelopmentcorp.org/wpcontent/uploads/2019/08/Bylaws-of-Batavia-DevelopmentCorporation-revised-4813-5785-0260-2-final.pdf
http://bataviadevelopmentcorp.org/wpcontent/uploads/2018/06/2012-04-Code-of-Ethics-adopted.pdf
N/A
N/A

No
Yes
Yes
Yes
No

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

No

N/A

Yes
Yes
No

N/A
N/A

11.

12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

Yes
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Board of Directors Listing
Name
Chair of the Board

Aratari, Lori
Yes

Nominated By
Appointed By

Local
Local

If yes, Chair Designated by

Elected by Board

Confirmed by Senate?

N/A

Term Start Date

1/24/2018

Yes

Term Expiration Date

12/31/2020

Has the Board Member/Designee
Signed the Acknowledgement of
Fiduciary Duty?
Complied with Training
Requirement of Section 2824?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
State Government Position?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
Municipal Government Position?
Ex-Officio

Nominated By
Appointed By

Local
Local

Confirmed by Senate?

N/A

Has the Board Member/Designee
Signed the Acknowledgement of
Fiduciary Duty?
Complied with Training
Requirement of Section 2824?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
State Government Position?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
Municipal Government Position?
Ex-Officio

Yes

Title

Has the Board Member Appointed
a Designee?
Designee Name

Name
Chair of the Board

Bedford, Wesley
No

If yes, Chair Designated by
Term Start Date

1/23/2020

Term Expiration Date

12/31/2023

Title

Has the Board Member Appointed
a Designee?
Designee Name

Yes
No

No

Yes
No

No
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Name
Chair of the Board

Cipollone, Pier
No

If yes, Chair Designated by
Term Start Date

1/1/2019

Term Expiration Date

Pleasure of Authority

Title

Has the Board Member Appointed
a Designee?
Designee Name

Name
Chair of the Board

Cohen, Rebecca
No

If yes, Chair Designated by
Term Start Date

6/1/2018

Term Expiration Date

12/31/2020

Title

Has the Board Member Appointed
a Designee?
Designee Name

Nominated By
Appointed By

Local
Local

Confirmed by Senate?

N/A

Has the Board Member/Designee
Signed the Acknowledgement of
Fiduciary Duty?
Complied with Training
Requirement of Section 2824?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
State Government Position?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
Municipal Government Position?
Ex-Officio

Yes

Nominated By
Appointed By

Local
Local

Confirmed by Senate?

N/A

Has the Board Member/Designee
Signed the Acknowledgement of
Fiduciary Duty?
Complied with Training
Requirement of Section 2824?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
State Government Position?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
Municipal Government Position?
Ex-Officio

Yes

Yes
No

No

Yes
No

No
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Name
Chair of the Board

Fix, Christine
No

If yes, Chair Designated by
Term Start Date

6/1/2018

Term Expiration Date

12/31/2020

Title

Has the Board Member Appointed
a Designee?
Designee Name

Name
Chair of the Board

Geib, Derek
No

If yes, Chair Designated by
Term Start Date

1/23/2020

Term Expiration Date

12/31/2023

Title

Has the Board Member Appointed
a Designee?
Designee Name

Nominated By
Appointed By

Local
Local

Confirmed by Senate?

N/A

Has the Board Member/Designee
Signed the Acknowledgement of
Fiduciary Duty?
Complied with Training
Requirement of Section 2824?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
State Government Position?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
Municipal Government Position?
Ex-Officio

Yes

Nominated By
Appointed By

Local
Local

Confirmed by Senate?

No

Has the Board Member/Designee
Signed the Acknowledgement of
Fiduciary Duty?
Complied with Training
Requirement of Section 2824?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
State Government Position?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
Municipal Government Position?
Ex-Officio

Yes

Yes
No

No

No
No

No
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Name
Chair of the Board

Martin, Moore
No

If yes, Chair Designated by
Term Start Date

4/1/2007

Term Expiration Date

Ex-Officio

Title

City Manager

Has the Board Member Appointed
a Designee?

No

Designee Name

Name
Chair of the Board

Pies, Steve
No

If yes, Chair Designated by
Term Start Date

1/1/2019

Term Expiration Date

12/31/2021

Title

Has the Board Member Appointed
a Designee?
Designee Name

Nominated By
Appointed By

Ex-Officio
Local

Confirmed by Senate?

N/A

Has the Board Member/Designee
Signed the Acknowledgement of
Fiduciary Duty?
Complied with Training
Requirement of Section 2824?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
State Government Position?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
Municipal Government Position?
Ex-Officio

Yes

Nominated By
Appointed By

Local
Local

Confirmed by Senate?

N/A

Has the Board Member/Designee
Signed the Acknowledgement of
Fiduciary Duty?
Complied with Training
Requirement of Section 2824?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
State Government Position?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
Municipal Government Position?
Ex-Officio

Yes

Yes
No

Yes

Yes

Yes
No

No

Page 6 of 24

Annual Report for Batavia Development Corporation

Run Date:
06/24/2020
Status:
UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date: N/A

Fiscal Year Ending: 03/31/2020

Name
Chair of the Board

Varland, Nate
No

If yes, Chair Designated by
Term Start Date

7/1/2018

Term Expiration Date

12/31/2020

Title

Has the Board Member Appointed
a Designee?
Designee Name

Name
Chair of the Board

Whiting, Jake
No

If yes, Chair Designated by
Term Start Date

2/1/2019

Term Expiration Date

12/31/2021

Title

Has the Board Member Appointed
a Designee?
Designee Name

Nominated By
Appointed By

Local
Local

Confirmed by Senate?

N/A

Has the Board Member/Designee
Signed the Acknowledgement of
Fiduciary Duty?
Complied with Training
Requirement of Section 2824?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
State Government Position?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
Municipal Government Position?
Ex-Officio

Yes

Nominated By
Appointed By

Local
Local

Confirmed by Senate?

N/A

Has the Board Member/Designee
Signed the Acknowledgement of
Fiduciary Duty?
Complied with Training
Requirement of Section 2824?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
State Government Position?
Does the Board Member/Designee
also Hold an Elected or Appointed
Municipal Government Position?
Ex-Officio

Yes

Yes
No

No

Yes
No

No
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Staff Listing
Name

Title

Group

Maguire,
Andrew J

Director of
Economic
Development
Director of
Economic
Development

Executive

FT

Yes

$65,000.00

$22,496.14

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00 $22,496.14

No

Executive

FT

Yes

$70,000.00

$32,873.08

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00 $32,873.08

No

Tabelski,
Rachael J

Department/
Subsidiary

Union
Name

Bargaining Full Time/ Exempt Base
Unit
Part Time
Annualized
Salary

Actual
Overtime
salary paid paid by
to the
Authority
Individual

Performance Extra Pay
Bonus

Other
Total
Individual
Compensati Compensat also paid by
on/Allowanc ion
paid another
es/Adjustme by
entity to
nts
Authority perform the
work of the
Authority
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Benefit Information
During the fiscal year, did the Authority continue to pay for any of the above mentioned benefits for former staff or individuals affiliated
With the Authority after those individuals left the Authority?

No

Board Members
Name

Title

Aratari, Lori

Board of
Directors
Board of
Directors
Board of
Directors
Board of
Directors
Board of
Directors
Board of
Directors
Board of
Directors
Board of
Directors
Board of
Directors
Board of
Directors

Bedford,
Wesley
Cipollone,
Pier
Cohen,
Rebecca
Fix,
Christine
Geib, Derek
Martin,
Moore
Pies, Steve
Varland,
Nate
Whiting,
Jake

Severance
Package

Payment
for
Unused
Leave

Club
Memberships

Use of
Corporate
Credit
Cards

Personal
Loans

Auto

Transportation

Housing
Allowance

Spousal /
Dependent
Life
Insurance

Tuition
Assistance

Multi-Year
Employment

None of
these
Benefits
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X

Staff
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Name

Title

Severance
Package

Payment
for
Unused
Leave

Club
Memberships

Use of
Corporate
Credit
Cards

Personal
Loans

Auto

Transportation

Housing
Allowance

Spousal /
Dependent
Life
Insurance

Tuition
Assistance

Multi-Year
Employment

None of
these
Benefits
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Subsidiary/Component Unit Verification

Is the list of subsidiaries, as assembled by the Office of the State Comptroller, correct?

No

Are there other subsidiaries or component units of the Authority that are active, not included in the PARIS reports submitted by this
Authority and not independently filing reports in PARIS?

Yes

Name of Subsidiary/Component Unit

Status

Request Subsidiary/Component Unit Change
Name of Subsidiary/Component Unit

Status

Requested Changes

Request Add Subsidiaries/Component Units
Name of Subsidiary/Component Unit
Creek Park LLC.

Establishment Date
4/5/2018

Purpose of Subsidiary/Component Unit
Real Estate Holding Company

Request Delete Subsidiaries/Component Units
Name of Subsidiary/Component Unit

Termination Date

Reason for Termination

Proof of Termination Document Name
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Summary Financial Information
SUMMARY STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Amount
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables, net
Other assets
Total Current Assets

$95,670.00
$0.00
$131,288.00
$0.00
$226,958.00

Noncurrent Assets
Restricted cash and investments
Long-term receivables, net
Other assets
Capital Assets

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
Land and other nondepreciable property
Buildings and equipment
Infrastructure
Accumulated depreciation
Net Capital Assets

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Pension contribution payable
Other post-employment benefits
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenues
Bonds and notes payable
Other long-term obligations due within one
year
Total Current Liabilities

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$226,958.00

$32,076.00
$0.00
$0.00
$2,313.00
$20,000.00
$0.00
$0.00
$54,389.00

Noncurrent Liabilities
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Pension contribution payable
Other post-employment benefits
Bonds and notes payable
Long Term Leases
Other long-term obligations
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$54,389.00

Total Liabilities
Net Asset (Deficit)
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related
debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

$0.00
$0.00
$152,741.00
$152,741.00

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Amount
Operating Revenues
Charges for services
Rental & financing income
Other operating revenues
Total Operating Revenue

$110,000.00
$0.00
$4,964.00
$114,964.00

Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages
Other employee benefits
Professional services contracts
Supplies and materials
Depreciation & amortization
Other operating expenses
Total Operating Expenses

$57,388.00
$0.00
$28,673.00
$7.00
$0.00
$9,068.00
$95,136.00
$19,828.00

Investment earnings
State subsidies/grants
Federal subsidies/grants
Municipal subsidies/grants
Public authority subsidies

$0.00
$16,637.00
$0.00
$20,000.00
$0.00

Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues
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Other nonoperating revenues
Total Nonoperating Revenue

Run Date:
06/24/2020
Status:
UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date: N/A

$0.00
$36,637.00

Nonoperating Expenses
Interest and other financing charges
Subsidies to other public authorities
Grants and donations
Other nonoperating expenses
Total Nonoperating Expenses
Income (Loss) Before Contributions
Capital Contributions
Change in net assets
Net assets (deficit) beginning of
year
Other net assets changes
Net assets (deficit) at end of year

$0.00
$0.00
$36,637.00
$0.00
$36,637.00
$19,828.00
$0.00
$19,828.00
$152,741.00
$0.00
$172,569.00
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Current Debt
Question
1.
2.

Did the Authority have any outstanding debt, including conduit debt, at any point during the reporting period?
If yes, has the Authority issued any debt during the reporting period?

Response
Yes
No

New Debt Issuances
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Schedule of Authority Debt

Type of Debt
State Obligation
State Obligation
State Obligation
State Obligation
Other State-Funded
Authority Debt - General
Obligation
Authority Debt - Revenue
Authority Debt - Other
Conduit
Conduit
TOTALS

Statutory Authorization($)

Outstanding Start of Fiscal New Debt Issuances($)
Year($)

Debt Retired ($)

Outstanding End of Fiscal
Year($)

State Guaranteed
State Supported
State Contingent Obligation
State Moral Obligation
Other State-Funded
Authority Debt - General
Obligation
Authority Debt - Revenue
Authority Debt - Other
Conduit Debt
Conduit Debt - Pilot
Increment Financing

0.00

81,829.00

0.00

0.00

81,829.00

0.00

81,829.00

0.00

0.00

81,829.00
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Real Property Acquisition/Disposal List
This Authority has indicated that it had no real property acquisitions or disposals during the reporting period.
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Personal Property
This Authority has indicated that it had no personal property disposals during the reporting period.
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Property Documents
Question
1.
In accordance with Section 2896(3) of PAL, the Authority is required to prepare a report at least annually
of all real property of the Authority. Has this report been prepared?
2.
Has the Authority prepared policies, procedures, or guidelines regarding the use, awarding, monitoring,
and reporting of contracts for the acquisition and disposal of property?
3.
In accordance with Section 2896(1) of PAL, has the Authority named a contracting officer who shall be
responsible for the Authority's compliance with and enforcement of such guidelines?

Response
Yes

URL (If Applicable)
http://bataviadevelopmentcorp.org/about-us/reports

Yes

http://bataviadevelopmentcorp.org/wpcontent/uploads/2019/01/Disposition-of-Real-Property-1-23-19.docx.pdf
N/A

Yes
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Grant Information
Source of Grant Funds
Name of Grant Recipient
Address Line1
Address Line2
City
State
Postal Code - Plus4
Province/Region
Country
Amount of Grant Award Provided During Reporting Year
Date Grant Awarded
Purpose of Grant
Was the Grant Expected to Result in New Jobs Being Created?
If yes, How Many Jobs Were Planned to be Created?
If yes, How Many Jobs Have Been Created to Date?

State
Batavia Development Corporation
Once Batavia City Centre

Source of Grant Funds
Name of Grant Recipient
Address Line1
Address Line2
City
State
Postal Code - Plus4
Province/Region
Country
Amount of Grant Award Provided During Reporting Year
Date Grant Awarded
Purpose of Grant
Was the Grant Expected to Result in New Jobs Being Created?
If yes, How Many Jobs Were Planned to be Created?
If yes, How Many Jobs Have Been Created to Date?

Municipal
Batavia Development Corporation
Once Batavia City Centre

BATAVIA
NY
14020
United States
$600,000.00
7/11/2018
Commercial Property Construction/Acquisition/Revitalization/Improvement
No

BATAVIA
NY
14020
United States
$20,000.00
4/8/2019
Marketing and Business Recruitment
No
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Annual Report for Batavia Development Corporation
Fiscal Year Ending: 03/31/2020

Run Date:
06/24/2020
Status:
UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date: N/A

Loan Information
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Annual Report for Batavia Development Corporation
Fiscal Year Ending: 03/31/2020

Run Date:
06/24/2020
Status:
UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date: N/A

Bond Information
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Annual Report for Batavia Development Corporation
Fiscal Year Ending: 03/31/2020

Run Date:
06/24/2020
Status:
UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date: N/A

Additional Comments
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Batavia Development Corporation

Grant Management/Support

Year Ending March 31, 2020
Consolidated Revenue
Contracts
$110,000
Misc
$ 4,964
TOTAL
$123,331

Downtown Revitalization Initiative —$10,000,000
DRI– Business Improvement Fund — $600,000

April 2019—March 2020

Batavia Development Corporation & Creek Park LLC

Consolidated Expenses
Salary & Benefits
$ 57,388
Insurance
$ 4,547
Office/Filings
$ 1,186
Travel & Training
$
974
Marketing & PR
$ 3,547
Professional Svcs
$ 27,494
TOTAL
$ 95,136
Operating Income

ANNUAL REPORT

New York Main Street Grant Program — $300,000
Revolving Loan Fund Grant Program — $206,000
(Estimated)
National Grid Main Street Grant — City Centre—$80,000
NYS ESD - DOS Pre-Development BOA Grant — $193,500

$ 19,828

Organization
The Batavia Development Corporation (BDC), a non-profit, 501(C)3, local development corporation, works to improve the quality of life within the City of
Batavia through planning, collaboration and programming that encourages
retention and development of small business, promote additional employment opportunities, retain and enhance the community’s fiscal base and
attract new business through research-based marketing.

“I am proud to call Batavia

my home and live in a city
Non Operating revenues (expenses)
Grant Pass Through $ 36,637
Grant Pass Through ($36,637)
TOTAL
($0)
Net position– beginning of year $152,741
Net position—end of year

$152,601
Theater 56 Rendering (2019)

Board of Directors (as of March 31st, 2020)
President

Lori Aratari - Rochester Regional Health/ UMMC Foundation

Vice President

Wesley Bedford, Manager: M&T Bank

Treasurer

Rebecca Cohen, Owner: Rebecca Cohen Yoga

Secretary

Jake Whiting, Attorney at Law

Ex-Officio

Dr. Martin Moore, Manager: City of Batavia

Director

Derek Geib, Owner: Bourbon N Burger, Romans & Coffee Press

Director

Steve Pies, Owner, Max Pies Furniture

Director

Chris Fix, past City Councilman

Director

Nate Varland, Director: Batavia Housing Authority

Advisory

Pier Cipollone, Past City Councilman and BDC President

Attorney

Bob Murray, Harris Beach PLLC
Staff:

BDC 2020 Goals
•
•
•

•
•

•
•

Andrew Maguire, Director of Economic Development
•
•

The BDC works daily to advance economic development on behalf of the City
of Batavia. As a Public Authority the BDC is responsible for complying with all
relevant New York State (NYS) laws, the NYS Authority Budget Office (ABO),
as well as other state agencies. Over the last year the BDC was successful in
obtaining IRS designation as a 501(C)3 charitable organization which will allow for more granting opportunities. The BDC ensures public transparency
and compliance by reviewing existing policies, posting all policies, reports,
audits, minutes and meeting materials on the BDC’s website. As a member of
the NYS Economic Development Council (NYSEDC) we connect with other
economic development professionals and remain informed of state legislative
changes. The BDC has increased project communication with City leaders
and council members to create a collaborative environment.

Secure capital/business commitments of $2.5 million.
Secure business pledges to create 25 jobs.
Secure Revolving Loan Funds/Grants for the City of Batavia
to foster new start-up businesses and promote repairs to
commercial and mixed-use buildings.
Achieve the BDC’s 2020-2021 budget from a bottom-line
financial operation performance (EBITDA) standpoint.
Successfully administer and implement the Batavia DRI
Building Improvement program, Business Improvement Fund
and Revolving Loan Fund Grants.
Close 5 loans in BDC loan commitments.
Encourage, enable and incentivize downtown building owners to add new upper floor apartments and new residential
living in the City of Batavia.
Participate in the City’s environmental investigation and
planning around the BOA Creek Park site.
Continue to enhance the BDC’s value and build strong relationships with the City of Batavia government, schools, businesses and residents, and other economic development
organizations.

585-345-6380

and prosperity for its
downtown businesses.”
- Lori Aratari - BDC President 2020

In This Report

Ellicott Place Rendering (2019)
One Batavia City Centre, Batavia, NY 14020

that has a vision of growth

bataviadevelopmentcorp.org
Cedar Street Rentals—RLF Grant Recipient (2020)

•

DRI Progress Report

•

NYMS Grant Program

•

BOA Progress Report

•

Opportunity Zone Progress Report

•

RLF Grant Program

•

DRI- Building Improvement Fund

•

Grant Management/Supprot

•

Consolidated Financial Statement

BOA Progress Report

Downtown Revitalization Initiative
The City of Batavia was selected as a DRI Round II winner. Recognizing that companies are increasingly seeking to relocate and invest in vibrant, walkable downtowns in an effort to attract and retain a talented workforce, Governor Cuomo
launched the Downtown Revitalization Initiative (DRI), a multimillion dollar effort to improve the vitality of urban centers
across New York State. Eight projects were selected for grant funding and are moving forward with designs, planning
approvals and construction.

With the announcement of the DRI funding awards, three of five strategic
Brownfield Opportunity Area (BOA) sites will move forward with plans
hatched in 2014. The City of Batavia was awarded $193,500
predevelopment
BOA sites that will allow the City to undertake
activities
environmental
preliminary engineering and architectural studies,
services, real estate services, o
, and
marketing as outlined
the BOA nomination
n The
will
fy needed permits,
p
and reviews
p
One
the primary missions
the
Brownfield Opportunity
Area Program
o address environmental

Batavia DRI
Building Improvement Fund
Last year, The BDC scored 26 building
improvement projects applications within the Business Improvement District
(BID). The selection committee offered
to eight projects. Five projects have
proceeded with the program as three
submitted letters relinquishing their
awards.

Highlights of the Selected Projects
•
•

The BDC is working with each project sponsor to ensure they have the support and assistance they need as they move
forward to construction.

•

5 projects accepted funding
8 upper floor residential units and 10
commercial units committed
$1.84M estimated capital investment

242 Ellicott Street Rendering

City of Batavia
New York Main Street Grant

Opportunity Zones Update
Opportunity Zones were conceived as an innovative approach to spurring
long-term private sector investments in low-income communities nationwide. The City of Batavia and the BDC are working to launch the Batavia
Opportunity Zone (OZ) Fund to attract investment capital. A $20,000 grant
was secured to fund the process of creating the OZ Fund as the BDC continues to seek investors for these zones. Once development projects are identified, an LLC will be formed and the OZ-Fund can begin to take shape.
Healthy Living Campus Rendering (2019)

Inside these census tracts are some of the most critical brownfield development areas, the City Centre, the Harvester Campus, and residential neighborhoods. Re-Development projects in these wards have been challenging, as
traditional lending has not stepped in. By setting up a Batavia Opportunity
Zone Fund, individuals locally and across the United States can invest their
capital gains directly into transformational projects, and receive a federal tax
benefit.

The City was
$300,000
funding from the New
Main
that will be
available to building owners
the
Downtown Revitalization
(DRI) or Batavia Business Improvement
District (BID) to rehabilitate
o
spaces,
n facades, and add upper
floor apartments to downtown
The goal
to revitalize several
buildings with this n
award,
addition to the p
moving
r
d
the DRI Building
p
Fund administered
by the Batavia Development
o
o

City of Batavia
Revolving Loan Fund Grant
Through the guidance and recommendation
of the BDC, the City Council for the City of

Batavia enacted a policy to allow for
grant funds to be accessed for specific
purposes including Brownfield Opportunity Area (BOA) advancement, City
Priority Economic Development, and
Building Improvements through the revolving
loan fund program the BDC administers. The
BDC will accept, review and recommend
eligible applicant projects to City Council for
approval. Another program in the tool box of
the BDC that will promote and execute the
City’s goal of revitalization.
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Account Table:

Revenue / Expense Control Report

Alt. Sort Table:

Fiscal Year: 2020 Period From: 5 To: 5

Account No.

Description

Fund 001
Type R

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Revenue

001.4000.007

Total Type R

GRANT REVENUE GOVERNMENT.NATIONAL GRID
- POWERHOUSE
GRANT REVENUE GOVERNMENT.DRI GRANT BLDG IMPROVEMENT FUND
GRANT REVENUE GOVERNMENT.CTY OF
BATAVIA OPPORTUNITY ZONE
FUND
Revenue

Type E

Expense

001.6000
001.6100
001.6120
001.7000.009

SALARY EXPENSE
FICA & MEDICARE
HEALTH INSURANCE
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.DRI
GRANT - BLDG IMPROVEMENT
FUND
PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES.CTY OF BATAVIA
OPPORTUNITY ZONE FUND
TELEPHONE
DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
LIABILITY
GENERAL LIABILITY
NON OPERATING
EXPENDITURES.NATIONAL
GRID - POWERHOUSE
Expense

001.4000.009

001.4000.010

001.7000.010

001.8110
001.8510
001.8520
001.9000.007

Total Type E
Total Fund 001

Grand Total

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION

GLR0130 1.0

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORP

Curr. Month
Total
Rev / Exp

YTD
Adjusted
Budget

YTD
Actual
Rev / Exp

Page 1 of 1
Prepared By: LISA

YTD
Budget
Balance

YTD
Encumbered

YTD
Available
Balance

Percent
Rev/Exp
Balance

0.00

100,000.00

0.00

100,000.00

0.00

100,000.00

0.00

0.00

550,140.93

(49,859.07)

600,000.00

0.00

600,000.00

(9.06)

0.00

(20,000.00)

0.00

(20,000.00)

0.00

(20,000.00)

0.00

0.00

630,140.93

(49,859.07)

680,000.00

0.00

680,000.00

(7.91)

5,000.00
403.68
230.76
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
550,140.93

9,464.29
764.11
436.80
0.00

(9,464.29)
(764.11)
(436.80)
550,140.93

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

(9,464.29)
(764.11)
(436.80)
550,140.93

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

(140.19)

0.00

(140.19)

0.00

(140.19)

0.00

46.16
0.00

0.00
0.00

87.37
1,451.00

(87.37)
(1,451.00)

0.00
0.00

(87.37)
(1,451.00)

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
100,000.00

614.08
0.00

(614.08)
100,000.00

0.00
0.00

(614.08)
100,000.00

0.00
0.00

5,680.60

650,000.74

12,817.65

637,183.09

0.00

637,183.09

1.97

(5,680.60)

(19,859.81)

(62,676.72)

42,816.91

0.00

42,816.91

315.60

(5,680.60)

(19,859.81)

(62,676.72)

42,816.91

0.00

42,816.91

315.60
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Sort:

Sort
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1

Fund

Yes

Yes

Yes

2

Type

Yes

No

Yes

No
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Account Table:

Rev/Exp Comparison Control Report

Prepared By: LISA

Alt. Sort Table:

Period From: 4 To: 5

Report Date:

06/08/2020

2019
Original
Budget

Account No.

Description

Fund 001
Type R

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Revenue

001.4000.003

Total Type R

GRANT REVENUE GOVERNMENT.USDA RURAL
DEVELOPMENT FRESH LAB
GRANT
GRANT REVENUE GOVERNMENT.HARVESTER
PARK EMPIRE STATE DEV
PLANNING
GRANT REVENUE GOVERNMENT.NEWBERRY NYS MAIN STREET ANCHOR
BLDG
GRANT REVENUE GOVERNMENT.NG NEWBERRY
GRANT REVENUE GOVERNMENT.NATIONAL
GRID - POWERHOUSE
GRANT REVENUE GOVERNMENT.EMPIRE
STATE DEV ELLICOTT
STATION
GRANT REVENUE GOVERNMENT.DRI GRANT BLDG IMPROVEMENT FUND
GRANT REVENUE GOVERNMENT.CTY OF
BATAVIA OPPORTUNITY
ZONE FUND
BDC REVENUE
OTHER OPERATING
REVENUE
OTHER NON OPERATING
REVENUE
Revenue

Type E

Expense

001.6000
001.6100
001.6100.002

SALARY EXPENSE
FICA & MEDICARE
FICA &
MEDICARE.MICROENTERPRIS
E -14
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT
FEDERAL UNEMPLOYMENT
TAX
HEALTH INSURANCE
DISABILITY INSURANCE

001.4000.004

001.4000.005

001.4000.006

001.4000.007

001.4000.008

001.4000.009

001.4000.010

001.4120
001.4900
001.5900

001.6110
001.6111
001.6120
001.6130

2019
Adjusted
Budget

2019
Actual
Rev / Exp

2019
Encumbered

2019
Available
Balance

2019
% Exp.
Balance

2018
Actual
Rev / Exp

2017
Actual
Rev / Exp

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

23,661.77

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

15,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

490,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

100,000.00

0.00

100,000.00

0.00

0.00

100,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

1,900,000.00

0.00

0.00

1,900,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

586,778.22

36,637.29

0.00

550,140.93

6.24

13,221.78

0.00

0.00

0.00

20,000.00

0.00

(20,000.00)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

110,000.00
0.00

110,000.00
4,000.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
(4,000.00)

100.00
0.00

110,000.00
0.00

110,000.00
55,000.00

0.00

13,500.00

963.50

0.00

12,536.50

7.14

108.00

3,323.50

0.00

2,710,278.22

171,600.79

0.00

2,538,677.43

6.33

123,329.78

796,985.27

0.00
0.00
0.00

70,000.00
6,000.00
0.00

52,820.31
4,248.84
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

17,179.69
1,751.16
0.00

75.46
70.81
0.00

56,289.51
4,581.66
0.00

71,352.68
5,668.87
(0.01)

0.00
0.00

900.00
200.00

237.32
81.99

0.00
0.00

662.68
118.01

26.37
41.00

199.82
84.00

141.71
42.00

0.00
0.00

3,000.00
200.00

2,266.39
84.29

0.00
0.00

733.61
115.71

75.55
42.15

3,162.10
178.32

3,000.00
60.00
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Account Table:

Rev/Exp Comparison Control Report

Prepared By: LISA

Alt. Sort Table:

Period From: 4 To: 5

Report Date:

06/08/2020

2019
Original
Budget

Account No.

Description

Fund 001
Type E

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Expense

001.6140

WORKERS COMP
INSURANCE
RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES.DRI GRANT - BLDG
IMPROVEMENT FUND
PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES.CTY OF BATAVIA
OPPORTUNITY ZONE FUND
SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS
SUPPLIES AND
MATERIALS.USDA RURAL
DEVELOPMENT FRESH LAB
GRANT
LEGAL/FILING FEES
LEGAL/FILING FEES.USDA
RURAL DEVELOPMENT
FRESH LAB GRANT
TELEPHONE
TRAVEL AND TRAINING
MARKETING AND PR
DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
LIABILITY
GENERAL LIABILITY
NON OPERATING
EXPENDITURES.USDA RURAL
DEVELOPMENT FRESH LAB
GRANT
NON OPERATING
EXPENDITURES.HARVESTER
PARK EMPIRE STATE DEV
PLANNING
NON OPERATING
EXPENDITURES.NEWBERRY NYS MAIN STREET ANCHOR
BLDG
NON OPERATING
EXPENDITURES.NG NEWBERRY
NON OPERATING
EXPENDITURES.NATIONAL
GRID - POWERHOUSE
NON OPERATING
EXPENDITURES.EMPIRE
STATE DEV ELLICOTT
STATION

001.6150
001.7000
001.7000.009

001.7000.010

001.7100
001.7100.003

001.8100
001.8100.003

001.8110
001.8120
001.8130
001.8510
001.8520
001.9000.003

001.9000.004

001.9000.005

001.9000.006

001.9000.007

001.9000.008

2019
Adjusted
Budget

2019
Actual
Rev / Exp

2019
Encumbered

2019
Available
Balance

2019
% Exp.
Balance

2018
Actual
Rev / Exp

2017
Actual
Rev / Exp

0.00

750.00

585.00

0.00

165.00

78.00

650.00

636.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

2,500.00
30,000.00
586,778.22

0.00
(1,236.85)
36,637.29

0.00
0.00
0.00

2,500.00
31,236.85
550,140.93

0.00
(4.12)
6.24

1,602.74
38,456.10
13,221.78

5,000.00
572.20
0.00

0.00

0.00

140.19

0.00

(140.19)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

1,500.00
0.00

6.85
0.00

0.00
0.00

1,493.15
0.00

0.46
0.00

638.78
19.20

1,010.20
0.00

0.00
0.00

2,000.00
0.00

725.62
0.00

0.00
0.00

1,274.38
0.00

36.28
0.00

784.98
0.00

782.38
600.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

600.00
1,500.00
7,000.00
1,600.00

453.39
973.50
3,576.89
966.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

146.61
526.50
3,423.11
634.00

75.57
64.90
51.10
60.38

445.18
1,644.73
4,368.54
1,451.00

0.00
494.76
2,530.85
1,451.00

0.00
0.00

500.00
0.00

644.08
0.00

0.00
0.00

(144.08)
0.00

128.82
0.00

629.08
0.00

2,123.11
29,013.52

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

15,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

490,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

100,000.00

0.00

100,000.00

0.00

0.00

100,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

1,900,000.00

0.00

0.00

1,900,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Date Prepared: 06/08/2020 09:13 AM

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORP

GLR4200 1.0
Page 3 of 4

Account Table:

Rev/Exp Comparison Control Report

Prepared By: LISA

Alt. Sort Table:

Period From: 4 To: 5

Report Date:

06/08/2020

2019
Original
Budget

Account No.

Description

Fund 001
Type E
Total Type E

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Expense
Expense
0.00

Total Fund 001

BATAVIA DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION

0.00

2019
Adjusted
Budget

2019
Actual
Rev / Exp

2019
Encumbered

2019
Available
Balance

2019
% Exp.
Balance

2018
Actual
Rev / Exp

2017
Actual
Rev / Exp

2,715,028.22

103,211.10

0.00

2,611,817.12

3.80

128,407.52

729,479.27

(4,750.00)

68,389.69

0.00

(73,139.69)

(1,439.78)

(5,077.74)

67,506.00
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Account Table:

Rev/Exp Comparison Control Report

Prepared By: LISA

Alt. Sort Table:

Period From: 4 To: 5

Report Date:

06/08/2020

Account No.

Description

Fund 002
Type R

CREEK PARK LLC
Revenue

002.4900

Total Type R

OTHER OPERATING
REVENUE
OTHER NON OPERATING
REVENUE
Revenue

Type E

Expense

002.7000
002.8100
002.9000
Total Type E

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
LEGAL/FILING FEES
NON OPERATING
EXPENDITURES
Expense

Total Fund 002

CREEK PARK LLC

002.5900

Grand Total

2019
Original
Budget

2019
Adjusted
Budget

2019
Actual
Rev / Exp

2019
Encumbered

2019
Available
Balance

2019
% Exp.
Balance

2018
Actual
Rev / Exp

2017
Actual
Rev / Exp

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

100.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

21,807.86

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

100.00

21,807.86

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

16,504.50
25.00
173,478.36

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

190,007.86

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

100.00

(168,200.00)

0.00

(4,750.00)

68,389.69

0.00

(73,139.69)

(1,439.78)

(4,977.74)

(100,694.00)

Official Use Only:

City of Batavia
Batavia, New York 14020
(585) 345-6300

Application #:

2020 Temporary Outdoor Dining on City Property Application
Application Fee- $250
(A license agreement must be executed upon City Council approval prior to use of City property)

Restaurant Name and DBA: ___________________________________________________________________
Contact Information:
Primary contact:

Secondary contact:

Name _____________________________________

__________________________________________

Phone # ___________________________________

__________________________________________

E-mail address ______________________________

__________________________________________

Mailing Address______________________________

__________________________________________

Location of Restaurant: ______________________________________________________________________
To potentially serve alcohol on City property during COVID-19 PAUSE Re-Opening Phase II outdoor dining areas
the State Liquor Authority guidance requires restaurants to border to accommodate outdoor diners.
Do you currently hold a license to serve alcohol on premise in your restaurant? ________yes
Will you plan to serve alcohol as part of your outdoor dining plan? __________ yes

_______no

___________ no

What are the current hours of operation of your restaurant? ________________________________________
What are the proposed hours that you would serve food outside? ___________________________________
If you are serving after dark how will you provide illumination for the area? ___________________________
Proposed location of Outdoor Dining: ___________________________________________________________
Proposed number of outdoor tables and seating capacity: __________________________________________
Outdoor Dining Proposal- written description and nature of outdoor location:
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Diagram/ Drawing/Sketch of proposed area (include use of fencing and posts, etc.):
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TENTS/CANOPIES/POP-UPS: See appendices for compliance checklist – all tents will be inspected **
Will Tents/Canopies or other membrane structures be erected ?

Yes

❑

NOTE – Appropriate anchoring is required for all tents, canopies, and popup structures
Please list size(s) of Tents/Canopies or other temporary structures erected*

ANCHORING INTO PAVEMENT IS PROHIBITED!
If anchoring in grass, soil areas please contact the NYS Dig Safe # at: 1-800-962-7962 or 811
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No

❑

PLEASE NOTE:
1. Be as specific as possible in the description so we have the best understanding of your plans for outdoor
dining. Also, be clear as to what you would like provided by the City. Applications should be submitted at
least 30 days in advance.
2. All New York State Department of Health COVID-19 guidelines, requirements, and general restaurant
requirements apply to the outdoor dining area.
3. Fire hydrants, Cross Streets/Alleys and Store Fronts Shall Not Be Blocked by any Vehicle or Concession at
any time.
4. An Emergency Vehicle Safety Lane Must be Maintained at All times at All Locations
5. City Sign Ordinances Shall Be Complied with at All Times and in All Regards
6. No paint or other markings may be placed on the parking lot surface.
7. Any overtime and/or material costs in excess of $100, as determined by City Departments, must be paid by the
restaurant.
8. The application fee is due at time of submission of the application and is non-refundable.
9. If approved, a Certificate of Liability Insurance of at least $1,000,000 naming the City of Batavia as an
additional insured for length of the license term must be submitted to the City Clerk prior to the use of property.
10. If approved, a certificate of SLB liquor liability of at least $1,000,000 naming the City of Batavia as an additional
insured for length of the license term must be submitted to the City Clerk prior to the use of property.
11. If approved a license agreement will be executed for the use of the space.
12. The restaurant will file a License Certification for Temporary Expansion with SLA.
https://sla.ny.gov/system/files/documents/2020/06/licensee-certification-for-temporary-extension.pdf
13. The City of Batavia will file a Municipality Application to Temporarily Extend Premises Application with the SLA.
https://sla.ny.gov/system/files/documents/2020/06/municipality-application-to-temporarily-extend-premises.pdf
14. The City of Batavia will provide oversite as to premise use and adherence to municipal code.
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Hold Harmless Agreement
_______________________, the applicant, shall indemnify, hold harmless, assume liability for and defend the City
of Batavia, its employees, officers and agents from any and all damages, costs and expenses including but not limited
to, attorney’s fees, court costs, and all other sums which the City of Batavia its employees, officers and agents may
pay or become obligated to pay on account of any and every demand, claim or assertion of liability, or any claim
founded thereon, arising or alleged to have arisen out of the activities described in this outdoor dining application and
sanctioned by the license agreement issued by the City of Batavia or by any act or omission of the
_______________________(applicant), its members, agents, employees, volunteers, officers, or directors in relation
to activities described in this application and sanctioned by the issuance of an outdoor dining license.
Date:

Name of Applicant

Authorized Signature, Title

Name – Printed or Typed

The rules and information contained within this application have been read and will be adhered to.
Date:

Please forward this application to:

Signature of Applicant:

City Clerk’s Office
Attention: Outdoor Dining Application
One Batavia City Centre
Batavia, New York 14020
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Outdoor Dining Application
Department approval summary
FOR OFFICIAL CITY USE ONLY
OFFICIAL USE ONLY
Department Recommendations:
DPW (if applicable)
Fire Dept. (if applicable)
Police Dept. (if applicable)

Approved

Denied

❑
❑
❑

❑
❑
❑

Additional Costs

Department Initials

If recommendation is denied, please attach a brief explanation

OFFICIAL USE ONLY
Date Received

Council Action: (Approved / Disapproved)

Date of Council Action:

Insurance Received (if applicable)

Outdoor Dining
Application #:
Department:
List Department Name Here

Department Approval
DPW
Fire
Police

YES

NO

❑
❑
❑

❑
❑
❑

Department Cost Estimate:
If applicable

Estimate based on: Fillable table – type your response here:

If Application not Approved, Provide Reason Here:

Fillable table – type your response here:
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Submitted By:
Name / Title

Date Submitted

Appendices

YES

YES

OUTDOOR DINING INSPECTION
Item to verify
NO
Corrective action
Extension cords plugged into approved electrical
Do not use unless cords plugged direct
boxes?

TEMPORARY STRUCTURE SETUP AND DAILY CHECKLIST (tent and membrane structures)
NO
Corrective Action
Item to Verify
Is structure at least 20 feet from any property lines?
Do not occupy or use structure. Structure needs to be relocated a
minimum of 20 feet from any property lines.
Is structure within 20 feet of any building?
Do not occupy or use structure. Structure needs to be relocated a
minimum of 20 feet from any building.
Is structure within 20 feet of another structure?
Evaluate all structures within 20 feet of each other as a single structure
meeting all applicable requirements.
Is structure within 20 feet of parking?
Restrict parking or relocate structure at least 20 feet from parking.
Is structure within 20 feet of any internal combustion
engines?

Do not use internal combustion engine until relocated at least 20 feet
from structure.

Are "No Smoking" signs posted inside and outside?

Do not occupy or use structure unless no smoking signs are posted and
enforced.

Inspection performed by:

Date:
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